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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 

TO THE READERS OF WINDSOR NORTH SCHOOL’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024 

 
 
The Auditor-General is the auditor of Windsor North school (the School). The Auditor-General has 
appointed me, Aaron Higham, using the staff and resources of BDO Invercargill, to carry out the 
audit of the financial statements of the School on his behalf. 
 
Opinion 
 
We have audited the financial statements of the School on pages 3 to 18, that comprise the 
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024, the statement of comprehensive revenue 
and expense, statement of changes in net assets/equity and statement of cash flows for the year 
ended on that date, and the notes to the financial statements that include accounting policies and 
other explanatory information. 
 
In our opinion the financial statements of the School:  
 
 present fairly, in all material respects: 

  
o its financial position as at 31 December 2024; and 
 
o its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended; and 

 
 comply with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand in accordance with 

Public Sector – Public Benefit Entity Standards, Reduced Disclosure Regime. 
 

 
Our audit was completed on 15 May 2025. This is the date at which our opinion is expressed. 
 
The basis for our opinion is explained below. In addition, we outline the responsibilities of the 
Board and our responsibilities relating to the financial statements, we comment on other 
information, and we explain our independence. 
 
Basis for our opinion 
 
We carried out our audit in accordance with the Auditor-General’s Auditing Standards, which 
incorporate the Professional and Ethical Standards and the International Standards on Auditing 
(New Zealand) issued by the New Zealand Auditing and Assurance Standards Board. Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Responsibilities of the auditor 
section of our report. 
 
We have fulfilled our responsibilities in accordance with the Auditor-General’s Auditing Standards.  
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion. 
 
Responsibilities of the Board for the financial statements  
 
The Board is responsible on behalf of the School for preparing financial statements that are fairly 
presented and that comply with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand.  
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The Board is responsible for such internal control as it determines is necessary to enable it to 
prepare financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error.  
 
In preparing the financial statements, the Board is responsible on behalf of the School for assessing 
the School’s ability to continue as a going concern. The Board is also responsible for disclosing, as 
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting, 
unless there is an intention to close or merge the School, or there is no realistic alternative but to 
do so. 
 
The Board’s responsibilities arise from section 134 of the Education and Training Act 2020. 
 
Responsibilities of the auditor for the audit of the financial statements  
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements, as a 
whole, are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor’s report that includes our opinion.  
 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit carried out 
in accordance with the Auditor-General’s Auditing Standards will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements are differences or omissions of amounts or disclosures, 
and can arise from fraud or error. Misstatements are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the decisions of readers taken on the 
basis of these financial statements. 
 
For the budget information reported in the financial statements, our procedures were limited to 
checking that the information agreed to the School’s approved budget. 
 
We did not evaluate the security and controls over the electronic publication of the financial 
statements.  
 
As part of an audit in accordance with the Auditor-General’s Auditing Standards, we exercise 
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. Also: 
 
 We identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those 
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher 
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

 
 We obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design 

audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control. 

 
 We evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Board. 
 
 We conclude on the appropriateness of the use of the going concern basis of accounting by 

the Board and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the School’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are 
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial 
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.  
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Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s 
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the School to cease to continue as 
a going concern. 

 
 We evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 

including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 
 We assess the risk of material misstatement arising from the school payroll system, which 

may still contain errors. As a result, we carried out procedures to minimise the risk of 
material errors arising from the system that, in our judgement, would likely influence 
readers’ overall understanding of the financial statements. 

 
We communicate with the Board regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of 
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control 
that we identify during our audit.  
 
Our responsibilities arises from the Public Audit Act 2001. 
 
Other information 
 
The Board are responsible for the other information. The other information obtained at the date of 
our report is The Statement of Responsibility, Members of the Board, Statement of Variance, 
Evaluation and analysis of the School's students' progress and achievement, How we have given 
effect to Te Tiriti o Waitangi, Statement of Compliance with employment policy and Statement of 
Kiwisport funding, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.  
 
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express 
any form of audit opinion or assurance conclusion thereon. 
 
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information. In doing so, we consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with 
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated. If, based on our work, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of 
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this 
regard. 
 
Independence 
 
We are independent of the School in accordance with the independence requirements of the 
Auditor-General’s Auditing Standards, which incorporate the independence requirements of 
Professional and Ethical Standard 1 International Code of Ethics for Assurance Practitioners 
(including International Independence Standards) (New Zealand) (PES 1) issued by the New Zealand 
Auditing and Assurance Standards Board. 
 
Other than the audit, we have no relationship with, or interests in, the School. 
 
 
 
 
 
Aaron Higham 
BDO Invercargill 
On behalf of the Auditor-General 
Invercargill, New Zealand 
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     Student Learning                                                Learning for Living - Ako Oranga 
 

 
Student Achievement report  
We are very proud of the learning shifts and progress our students have made over 2024.  
End of Year Assessment Overview  
●​ Reading 94% of our students are working at our above expectation 
●​ Writing 80% of our students are working at our above expectation 
●​ Mathematics 83% of our students are working at our above expectation 

 

Mid Year 2024 Mid Year Assessment Analysis 
 DRAFT MOE Board WNS 2024 MID YEAR Achi…

End of Year End of Year Assessment Analysis 
 WNS 2024 Overall End of Year Achievemen…

 
Variance - Student Target Reports 
Over Terms 2-4 each of our cohort teams have worked on targeted action focuses to support  
accelerated learning shifts in writing and mathematics.  
 
 
 

SENCO 2024 Report  
GATE  
We had 20 students participate in the ENRICH programme 
Our students took part in a number of competitive opportunities including: ICAS, KIwi Tests, speech, higher 
level sporting development. 
 
ELL/ ESOL 
This is an area of growth for the school with increased numbers. Our focus is to continue to build 
partnerships with families and students. We increased support for students in class and have increased 
personnel and programme development.  
 
Te Reo and NZ Histories 
This year we focused on the Treaty and linked Te Tiriti of Waitangi principles with our school values. 
Through our learning inquiries our focus has been to build understanding and knowledge around the 
theme of “ Our School, Our People and the heritage and cultures we bring to our place.”  
In 2025 we will look to develop the local Murahuki stories to our context and develop some visual 
storyboards for our school. 
 
 

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1w946VcEXqQ5KeYdE7Mtm3IPR5-pe94izVREeIhQS9HE/edit?usp=sharing
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1iDt9RV06l9gCU4_ZWPraCYnoLHWquFmA9G30UmyZ404/edit?usp=sharing


 
Rich Learning/Community Of Learning  
Providing rich experiences and weaving them into our learning programme is a crucial strategic focus for 
us. This year students have been engaged in a rich authentic task of researching and developing design 
concepts for a new library for our school. Each year level took on a different component to 
project-manage. Designs were presented to the Board of Trustees to further develop the library concept 
with a students lens: 

●​ Year 1 sensory interior and lilliput library boxes 
●​ Year 2-3 landscape garden design 
●​ Year 4-5 interior design 
●​ Year 6 architectural design of the building 

Click on the following video link to view our students' ideas: https://youtu.be/S6f8SXOJE9U?si=SU_YvgPT6fwmcc9H 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

In Term 4 the students then moved to kick start fundraising for the library by diving into Technology, Design and 
Financial Literacy projects in working through the design process for forming and putting on a Table Top Fair. 
Students worked hard throughout the whole process working on sustainability, upcycling and creating, 
marketing and selling their wares. They then worked out their profit margins. The weather on the day for the 
Table Top Fair was wet and cold but this did not hold back our whanau and wider community coming to the fair 
with over $5000 raised. A great way to start the motivation of the next stage of working with the Ministry of 
Education and grants funding organisations to get a new transportable library on site. 

https://youtu.be/S6f8SXOJE9U?si=SU_YvgPT6fwmcc9H


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Student Leadership:  
A variety of leadership opportunities were on offer - this included School Councillors, Hosting Virtual 
Assemblies, PALS/ CALS. 

 
 
 



     Sport and Culture                                               Learning for Living - Ako Oranga 
 
2024 Camping Programme included: 

●​ Year 6 - students had 2 nights at Camp Columba.  The camp is very much a highlight of the Year 
6 programme and the students really got to shine while using the WNS STRIVE Values. 

●​ School swimming took place for Year 1-6 in Term 1.  
 
Specialist Curriculum  

●​ Visiting Performer visits returned with much excitement - Orchestra, Waste Wanda and Playhouse. 
 
Extra Curricular activities included: 

●​ Kapa Haka - we are rebuilding our Kapa Haka. This year the group really focused on key waiata 
and haka and it was wonderful to be able to perform at Polyfest.  A huge thank you to Whaea 
Shari and Whaea Alice 

●​ The Kennedy School of Music programme has been integrated into our school programme as an 
option for families over 2024. 

●​ The school holds many club options for our students. These range from sporting, arts, culture and 
community based options including calf club, garden club, radio, techie club, golf, choir, 
orchestra, kapa haka, touch, netball, cricket, miniball and football to name a few. 

●​ Sporting - this year our Year 5-6 students shared the Tri Nations trophy with a draw when we 
competed against our local schools in netball, football and rugby.  

 
WNS Sporting teams  
All did incredibly well over 2024 with many of our teams getting to the finals in their respective 
competitions in netball, touch waterpolo, minball, touch,cross country, athletics and winning competition 
titles. A big shout out to our Jump Jam Teams for taking out titles. 
 
We would like to thank our amazing parent volunteers who support the teams in coaching and 
managing, as well as our amazing teaching team who also contribute many extra hours to support 
students in teams. Without you all we would not be able to support our students in sport and cultural 
events. 
 
Kiwi Sport:  
As part of our kiwi sporting development we have focused on getting specialist teachers to join our PE 
programmes - this includes: cricket, soccer, and supporting our students in team events. We also 
replenished well used sports equipment. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



   Statutory - Board                                                 Learning for Living - Ako Oranga 
 

Windsor North School Chair- L Hicks 
It has been another big year for WNS. The Board supported by staff have reviewed our strategic plan. We need 
to provide space for the consideration of and allow time for the preparation for the new Government’s 
directions. A number of property matters have also been completed. Our regulatory and compliance reports 
were fully completed.  Most importantly we’ve continued to support staff and the learners through this period 
of uncertainty.  
 
Legislation and Administration 
Length of the School Year : The school was open for 384 half days.  
School Roll: 2024 year ended with a roll of 340 students. The roll over the year did fluctuate with rolls 
increasing and dropping due to families coming and leaving the area. We had 58 Year 6 graduates leave at the 
end of the year. 
 
Student attendance - Windsor North School worked really hard to ensure student attendance. 
     
Ministry of Education projects:      

●​ Our Year 3-6  students took part in National Education Monitoring Project  
●​ Our Year 2 participated in the Phonics Trial in Term 4    
●​ The Mathematics and Statistic NZ Curriculum Refresh with Renee Kake  

 
Our  ERO partnership focus on the schools compliance was complete and to a high standard. We are awaiting 
our  confirmed report. 
 
Finance - M Roy 
The School’s financial position remains very strong with working capital and overall equity. Huge thanks to 
the staff for working within the budgets set, with expenditure used seeing positive impacts for our students.  
The board has supported staff training and resourcing with emphasis on Structured Literacy to ensure we 
are best placed for implementing this effectively into our school over the next year.  
Financial contribution was made by the board to ensure our property projects continue as per the schools 
maintenance plan, and the board also supported resourcing in a number of areas.  
We would like to thank our community for the school donations they make. This support means we can 
offer our students additional areas of learning including Life Education, visiting performers, technology and 
additional resources etc. 
 
Personnel - S Hazlett 
Over the year we have had a focus on staff wellbeing: 
●​ Examined challenges around relief teacher supply, review of how we operate to support staff with CRT 

and cover for sickness. This is a continued focus. 
●​ There were no personnel grievances received by the Board. 
●​ There were no material parent grievances/complaints regarding WNS personnel received by the 

Board. 
●​ Administrative and support staff cohort performed admirably. Some staff have adjusted their roles to 

meet personal needs.  
On reflection, 2024 was a very successful year from a personnel perspective for the school with a tangible 
shift in positive cultural development and a supportive and engaging employment ethos within the school. 
Looking ahead to 2025 we are mindful that our staff are facing a number of curriculum changes based on 
the new government initiatives through the New Zealand curriculum refresh. For Windsor North staff this 
includes: 

●​ Implementation of the English and Mathematics curriculums 
●​ Implementation of structured literacy programme (The code and Literacy Learners 

framework) and science of learning approach using explicit teaching 
●​ Implementation of using the Mathematics and Statistics resource - Maths No Problem  



●​ Associated development of new assessment and reporting practices including: eAsttle Yr 3-6, 
Phonics checking, reporting structures to show progress within the new phases of learning Yr 
0-3 / Yr 4-6. 

The board will add key focus on supporting resource development for the above new initiatives and 
professional development support. Importance is stressed in implementation in stages and building 
strong foundations and that pacing should be measured to ensure coherence across the school and 
staff wellbeing. 

 
Professional Learning:  
The Board values the importance of ensuring WNS staff are equipped to support our learning.  Over 2024, 
staff were involved in the following focused development: 

●​ Mitey Mental Health Programme  
●​ NZ Curriculum Refresh 
●​ Cultural Responsiveness - Board  
●​ Reading Recovery training 
●​ PB4L 
●​ Leadership team - Assessment capability and coaching, New Curriculum Maths development initial 

overview 
●​ AI development and learnings 
●​ This year our Principal Debbie Dickson was on sabbatical for 10 weeks during Terms 3 and Term 4. During 

this time she travelled to Finland, Dubai and Singapore as part of her professional learning focus of 
looking to the future to look at support structures in assisting in accelerated learning, viewing structured 
approaches and use of integration of the student agency through the curriculum. Please see attached 
recommendations and new learnings to unpack and develop within our 3 strategic focuses. We thank the 
Ministry of Education for their support to principals by way of the wellbeing / professional learning fund. 
We see value in this in the allowance for principals to look wider and be in touch with what is evolving in 
places around the world in education.  

 
Statement of Resources:- Staffing structure/ Units:  
●​ 18.58 staffing with 17 units. Major allocation of units is distributed to Leadership team members.  
●​ The board also appointed part time teachers to cover classroom release, leadership release. 
●​ The Board was committed to supporting students’ learning by appointing 5 learning assistants to work 

in teams with groups of children and 1:1. Based on additional funding part time project based 
Teacher Assistants were employed for 6-8 weeks to work on a project. 

●​ Our admin team includes 2 team members. 
 

Health, Safety and Welfare  
In 2024 the Board reviewed its risk management policy and health and wellbeing policy. The Board also 
commenced a wide ranging audit of its health and safety policies and procedures in light of Work Safe’s 
decision to prosecute a school Board for health and safety failures identified due to an incident during an 
education outside the classroom trip. This audit is ongoing and has involved a health and safety 
representative from the Board meeting with the Principal and school Health and Safety representative, 
reviewing the EOTC guidelines, providing a discussion paper to the Board, and commencing drafting of 
amendments to existing health and safety policies. The Board aims to complete this audit in 2025. 
 
A key focus for the Board again this year has been the ongoing review and evaluation of the trends and 
patterns identified in the Health and Safety section of the Principal’s Board Report. The reporting has been 
adjusted in 2024 to identify areas of the school and times of day where a higher level, or similar types, of 
incidents may be occurring. The Board has identified this as a continued area of focus for 2025. 
 
Property/ Asset Management 
Over the year the Board worked closely with Southern Quantity Surveyors in finalising the following project 
developments: 
●​ Roof replacement for C block  
●​ Water main upgrade 



 
Under General Maintenance - we have maintained building warrant of fitness standards, and continued to 
enhance the play spaces, improved the health room with an upgrade,  
ICT:  
The school is committed to maintaining a good base of e-learning tools for students to access. Over 2024 
we have commenced a replacement plan of our depreciated ICT equipment. Network for Learning 
completed a wifi and cybersafety upgrade.   
We introduced a new School Management System HERO into our school that includes school 
communication, finance, parent management, assessment and reporting. 

 
Windsor North PTA / Community: Special thanks must also go to: 
●​ Community Trust Southland for $9,000 to support learning development programmes  
●​ Our PTA Community for raising funds to support our school including Maths & ICE resources, Kapa Haka 

Moko Stencils, student counselling, Colour Run Powder and sunscreen. 
 

The WNS Board Elected September 2022 
Name Position on the Board How Position gained on the 

Board 
Occupation 

 

Term Expires 

Lucy  Hicks Presiding Member Elected Environment Southland 2025 

Sarah Hazlett Deputy Chair 
Personnel 

Elected Personnel 2025 

Kelly Kenndy Community / H&S Elected Music Own Business 2025 

Shari Fengley Community Co-opted Teacher 2025 

Meghan Roy Finance Elected Banking 2025 

Trudy Conway H&S/ Property Elected Lawyer 2025 

Matt Murray Staff Rep Staff Elected Teacher 2025 

 
REMUNERATION OF BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEMBERS 2023. 
Number of board meetings held: 8 Board Meetings were held over 2023 

 
Thank you to… 
●​ WNS staff 
●​ Leadership Team 
●​ Our amazing supporters of the school 
●​ Windsor North Parent Association (PTA) 
●​ Windsor North School Boards  
who have all worked tirelessly and well beyond the call of duty to ensure that Windsor North School is a 
wonderful place for learning and to be part of.  We look forward to 2025 where we continue to go 
deeper in the development of our  3 strategic goals 

●​ Leaderful Learning - development of student agency principles 
●​ Continuous Improvement - focus on NZ Curriculum refresh within Mathematics and  
●​ Collaborative Connections - building further partnerships with our students, staff, parents and 

wider community 
As we move into a phase of review and implementation of our new strategic plan we are keen to 
develop the NZ Curriculum Refresh within our school through review of our practices and assessment 
process to ensure we develop positive progression frameworks for all our students.            
Debbie  Dickson Principal 



Windsor North School Board of Trustees 2024 
 
 

Name Occupation Delegations 

Debbie Dickson Principal Principal 

Lucy Hicks General Manager Policy & Government 
Reform  

Board Chair, Suspensions, Finance 

Meghan Roy Banker Finance 

Sarah Hazlett General Manager People & Culture Personnel, Suspensions 

Trudy Conway Lawyer Property 

Shari Frengley Teacher  

Matt Murray Teacher Staff Representative 
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     Contents/Overview 

 

 

PROCESS we used: 
1.​ Analysis of data and drilling down to focus points within reading, writing and mathematics 
2.​ Teams then drilling down into the data and forming target focus points 
3.​ Each Team setting target of variance focus Term 2 - Term 3/4 
4.​ Reflections on progress and development 

Teams are focussing on Noticing, Recognising and Responding to the shifts and trends and ensuring 
progress is being made. 
Target of variance has been developed within the following team structure. Below are the Variance 
Reports made by each team. 
 

          Pikopiko Yr 0- 1 Koru Yr 2-3 Kowhai, Kauri  Yr 4-6 

 

 
 

2024 END Year Overall Results - 314 student data analysis 
Overall Teacher Judgement Data is based on a triangulated holistic approach in all 3 curriculum areas. It includes:  summative testing, (PAT Testing, Running Records, GLOSS, Essential 
Spelling) formative assessment against expectations and student work books and instructional teaching times. As a school we moderated samples of writing across the school and in 
reading and writing team moderation sessions were formed and then looked across the teams - we were looking for patterns of coherence and consistency. The aim is for cohorts and 
the school to be achieving on average 80% at or above. Please note the overview data includes our Year 0 students and students who have come into school mid Term 3 and Term 4 
2024, plus students working on individual education plans and requiring learning support.  

Reading 
Overall as a school 86% achieving Within/Above the 
Expected Curriculum Level at end of 2024 
(88% mid year, 2024, 94% 2023, 90% in 2022, 93% in 2021 end of 
year) 
Year 0- 90% working within and Above expected level 
Year 1- 72% working within and Above expected level 
Year 2 - 93% working within and Above expected level 
Year 3- 84% working within and Above expected level 
Year 4 - 86% working within and Above expected level 
Year 5 -98% working within and Above expected level 
Year 6 - 87% working within and Above expected level 

Writing 
Overall as a school 72% achieving Within/Above the 
Expected Curriculum Level at end of 2024 
(71% mid year, 74% in 2023, 76% in 2022, 83% in 2021 end of year) 
Year 0 - 100% working within and Above expected level 
Year 1 - 82% working within and Above expected level  
Year 2 - 63% working within and Above expected level 
Year 3 - 68% working within and Above expected level 
Year 4 - 54% working within and Above expected level 
Year 5 - 74% working within and Above expected level 
Year 6 - 82% working within and Above expected level 

Maths 
Overall as a school 87% achieving Within/Above the 
Expected Curriculum Level at end of 2024 
(87% mid year, 83% 2023,91% in 2022, 91% in 2021 end of year) 

Year 0 - 100% working within and Above expected level 
Year 1 - 82% working within and Above expected level 
Year 2 - 85% working within and Above expected level 
Year 3 - 84% working within and Above expected level 
Year 4 - 83% working within and Above expected level 
Year 5 - 89% working within and Above expected level 
Year 6 - 88% working within and Above expected level 

 



 
 

          Pikopiko Analysis of Variance - Year 0-1 2024 

 
Pikopiko Yr 0-1 Cohort High Level Big Picture OVERVIEW    

Number of Boys 
Year 0 T1= 12  
Year 0 T4=21 
 

Year 1 T1= 21 
Year 1 T4 20 
 

T1 33 
T4 41 

Number of Girls 
Year 0 T1= 8 
Year 0 T4=18 
 

Year 1 T1= 18 
Year 1 T4=20 
 

T1 26 
T4 38 

Totals 
Y0 T1= 20 
Y0 T4=39 
 
Y1 T1 = 39 
Y1 T4=40 
 
59 students T1 
79 students T2 

Learning Needs  
Total = 12/21  
(T1 -20%/ T4 - 27%) 
 
RTLB T1/T4  
Learning= 7/8 
SLT  4/4 
HHN 1/1 
Behavior T1 -4/ T 4 -8 

Number of Maori 
Total = 10/11  
 
 

Number of Pacifika 
Total = 1 
 
 

Number of ESOL 
Total = 14/23 (+6 from 
newest cohorts)  
T1 - 34%/ T 4- 29% 
Breakdown 
Asian = 8 
Refugee = 0 
Other = 6 

 

Team Learning AREA Breakdown BIG PICTURE  

Assessment Reading 
T1 

Reading 
T4 

Notes Writing 
T1 

Writing 
T4 

Notes Maths & 
Stats T1 

Maths 
& Stats 
T4 

Notes 

Below 
Expectation 

4 7 39 students = 36 (Y1’s) + 
3 Y1’s started after 1 
April in Y0 data) 
Below and beginning - 
6 are in ELS group - 
R/rec 
2 in SLit group 
1 behaviour support 
* Students new to 
school (Y0s) from 1 April  
are measured as 
above if reading higher 
than L6 as the 
expected level for end 
of year cohort  

  Drilling down on 
assessment data has 14 
students needing 
phonics/spelling support - 6 
in ELS group, 6 in SL grp, 2 
behaviour support 
*Students recorded as 
above mid year have 
moved to within - progress 
within level  

  All students now measured 
against expected level for mid 
Y1 cohort - beg L1 - not on 
age/months at school so no 
students can be recorded as 
below 
 
Looking at gloss and knowledge 
data in age order to target 
maths goals 
*Students recorded as above 
mid year have moved to within - 
progress within level  
  

Beginning 5 7 0 7 0 6 

At 17 17 13 36 20 35 

Above 10 * 20 23 *8 16 *10 

totals 36 51 36 51 36 51 



 
 
 

Summary Overview 
TEAM Statement of 
Big Picture Data T1 
2024 
 

●​ Some students needing CVC support / phonics focus to improve ability to write independently and with greater accuracy 
●​ Many students coming in without basic key competencies of managing self, relating to others and participating and contributing - 

social competencies 
●​ Drill down into maths strategy and knowledge gaps to consider in class targeted support 

TEAM Data Analysis 
Reflection  Term 4 
2024 

●​ 20 new students - increase in high behaviour/learning needs from 20% of students to 27% - predominantly behaviour  
●​ Above data in reading looks high as the Y0s who started closer to 1 April have been at school for 8-9 months and their expected 

reading level of L8 or L9 is compared to an end of year expectation of L6 for this cohort. This will balance out over time. 
●​ Above data in writing and maths has reduced from mid year report to end of year report due to a similar reason. The mid year 

data showed the Y1s working in middle level 1 as above at middle of year. If they are still working at this level at the end of the 
year their dot moves to within. Even so there has been good progress within this level as shown in their gloss, basic facts knowledge 
and writing progression highlights.  

●​ We are happy with recording the dots in the right places and justifying any changes in ‘above’ to ‘at’ in the comments section of 
the report to explain this to parents. 

●​ Our results to raise a target group of students to achieve 16/16 in CVC phonics spelling has seen mixed results.  
●​ Some of the students were able to attend an Early Literacy Group to strengthen their overall literacy ability in reading and writing. 

The most progress was made with students who had targeted, regular in class phonics structured sessions.  
●​ This supports our plans for 2025 to implement a structured literacy approach across the school. (Results from a Y4/5 structured 

literacy TA intervention also supports this) 
●​ The students targeted for the CVC growth will all be picked up in 2025 for daily accelerated structured literacy groups to continue 

with these goals. 
 

PASTORAL CARE OVERVIEW 

7 students identified as needing emotional/social support - working with whānau and outside agencies to support ie OT, STAND, counsellor, family works, 
strengthening families, RTLB, ed psych, MOE,  

3 students identified with high absences and are being closely monitored and supported to improve attendance 

Increase in high behaviour needs new entrants, lacking basic readiness for school ie; sitting on mat, following teacher requests, getting along with other, 
motor skills/cutting, holding pencil, communication, toileting - the introduction of TAHI time and focus explicit teaching in these areas has supported 
confidence and growth for students to becoming more confident to independently engage in learning within the classroom setting. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

Target Group for Spelling Spelling/ Phonics 

WHY this target group  Drill down data shows some inconsistencies of students achievement in EWL1, EWL2, CVC, CVCC etc 
across Pikopiko classrooms  

 

Target Plan Identified Needs 
Focusing - What has been identified as a key focus 

area?Therefore worth spending time on? 
(observation/evidence based) 

Actions/Strategies 
Teaching Inquiry - What strategies  or skills will I 

implement that would make an impact and 
learning shift.? (evidenced based) 

Reflection 
Learning Inquiry - What happened as a result of the 
targeted focus. What did you see as the Strengths, 
Opportunities to develop further (next steps) and 

overall results .  
Term 2/ Term 3 Focus on CVC - all students identified be able to 

record CVC words by end of Term 3 

Student  Student  

K = 1 M =6 

R =2  R=7 

S= 3 R=8 

L = 4 L=9 

J = 5 L=10 

I = 11  
 

Structured lit group - 2 times per week 
per group (2 groups) with TA - 6 students 
 
 
ELS groups x 2 with a reading recovery 
teacher. -5 Students 
 
3:Writing progression class targets: 
7 students 

●​ Our results to raise a target group 
of students to achieve 16/16 in 
CVC phonics spelling has seen 
mixed results. We were unable to 
have a TA intervention as planned 
as there were more pressing 
needs in Y4/5.  

●​ Some of the students were able to 
attend an Early Literacy Group to 
strengthen their overall literacy 
ability in reading and writing. The 
most progress was made with 
students who had targeted, 
regular in class phonics structured 
sessions.  

●​ This supports our plans for 2025 to 
implement a structured literacy 
approach across the school. 
(Results from a Y4/5 structured 
literacy TA intervention also 
supports this) 

 



 
Across team results for CVC - many achieved the 16/16 CVC goal by end of year - 30/39 students made excellent 
progress achieving the target of 16/16 or close to it. 
Target group end of year results - goal was 16/16 for 11 students. 3 students achieved their goal. 5 students 
made good progress towards achieving their goal. One made fair progress and 2 made poor progress. See 
reflections for 2025 structured literacy focus for these students. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CLASS / TEAM TARGET FOCUS  

Hot Spot Target Group Key 
Competencies 

Basic learning Skills, Key Competencies 

WHY this target group  General observations and increase in outside agency support for new entrant students coming into school 
without basic readiness skills ie key competencies of managing self, relating to others and participating and 
contributing - social competencies 

 

Sprint Cycle Identified Needs 
Focusing - What has been identified as a key focus 

area?Therefore worth spending time on? (observation/evidence 
based) 

Actions/Strategies 
Teaching Inquiry - What strategies  or skills will I implement 
that would make an impact and learning shift.? (evidenced 

based) 

Reflection 
Learning Inquiry - What happened as a 

result of the targeted focus. What did you 
see as the Strengths, Opportunities to 

develop further (next steps) and overall 
results .  

Term 3 and 
Term 4 

Students need to develop foundation skills to be able 
to get on with academic teaching and learning 

 

PMP (perceptual motor programme) aims to 
build skills and confidence in 3 areas. 
 

Motor Outcomes – Balance, Fitness, Eye/hand 
coordination, Locomotion 
Perception Outcomes – Body Control, Laterality, 
Directionality, Space Awareness, Body Rhythm 
Skill Outcomes – Problem solving, PE skills, 
Confidence, Memory, Language 
 

Many students were coming into school needing 
these key skills for learning. RTLB applications were 
becoming more frequent and graduated transition 
plans to support students to be at school full time 
were increasing. Basic foundation skills are 
necessary for academic learning to begin i.e. 
holding a pencil, developing muscles for sitting on 
the mat, at a table for periods of time to complete 
tasks. 

PMP  
2 x per week all term and consider extending 
1-1 PMP for high needs 
Teaching focus, listening, following instructions, 
caring for self - shoes, socks, basic foundation 
skills, controlling body actions, eye/hand 
coordination, balance, gross motor skills, muscle 
development, memory retention 
Positive - Having a board funded TA to run the 
programme made it very targeted to needs and 
extremely worthwhile to keep running. 

We decided to run PMP for two 
terms instead of the planned one. 
This was agreed due to the high 
behaviour needs and the value in 
a tight structured PMP programme 
to work on listening, following 
instructions and early foundation 
skills. 
Observations and teacher 
feedback resulted in a noticeable 
shift in students' ability to be ready 
for classroom learning, listen to 
instructions, follow directions and 
develop motor skills both fine and 
gross. 
We plan to continue this 
programme in 2025 following term 
1 athletics and swimming.  
 



All students in Pikopiko were part of the PMP 
programme to develop these skills. 
 

A TA was employed to coordinate the rotations, set 
up the equipment daily in the hall and support 
teachers to run the stations. 
Tahi Time evolved to enable each teacher to run a 
programme for a week and focus on different 
competencies such as perseverance, listening actively, 
fine motor skills, working together and resilience. 
Students who were identified as having these needs to 
work on were withdrawn from the classroom and 
worked with a teacher while the other teachers 
continued their reading programme. 

Tahi Time  
Focus on key competency development through 
a structured play approach - T3 creative clubs 
with parent support - teachers use literature to 
generate KC goals and reflect after club sessions 

Tahi Time continued to run after 
Jan’s Masters intervention to 
address the growing needs to 
develop key competencies in our 
new entrant programme. There 
was great collaboration and effort 
from the Pikopiko teachers to 
make this happen and 2025 will 
see this develop further.  
Teacher observations showed a 
marked increase in the ability for 
students to work alongside each 
other with fewer conflicts and 
challenges. The students 
transitioning into 2025 - Year 2 - 
have overcome many of the 
challenges that they had when 
starting school. This is especially so 
for our neurodivergent students 
who were difficult to keep in the 
classroom or engaged in a task. 
Tahi Time will continue in 2025 to 
support the increase in new 
students coming to school needing 
these basic skills and 
competencies to be able to work 
and play alongside others. 

 
 
 



         Koru Analysis of Variance - Year 2-3 2024 

 
Koru Team Year 2-3  Cohort High Level Big Picture OVERVIEW     

Number of Boys 
Year 2   31 
 
Year 3  5 

Number of Girls 
Year 2  22 
 
Year 3  8 

Learning Needs  
Total 13 
 
RTLB/ Learning 5 
HHN 1 
HCN 1 
Behavior 6 

Number of Maori 
Total 9 
 
Boys  6 
Girls   3 

Number of Pacificka 
Total 1 
 
Boys 1 
Girls 

Number of ESOL 
Total 19 
10 boys 
9 girls 
Including 1 refugee 
 
Breakdown 
Argentina,Peru, Sri 
Lankan, Columbian 
Asian 
Refugee 1 
Other 

 
Team Learning AREA Breakdown BIG PICTURE  
Assessment Reading Notes Writing Notes Mathematics and 

Stats 
Notes 

Below 10 students 
 

Speech/learning 
support x1 
 
Reading Recovery 
x4 
 
Learning support x3 
 
ESOL x3 
 
 
 

6 Learning support x2 
 
ESOL x 4 
 
Reading Recovery 
x4 
 
 
Speech/learning x1 
 
 
 
 

15 
 

Speech x1 
Learning supportx3 
ESOL x3 
 At Risk 7 14 

 
7 
 
 

At 26 38 
 
 

35 
 

Above 18 3 8 

 
 
 



Summary Overview TEAM 
Statement of Big Picture Data 
 
What is missing that we need to investigate? 

For reading, approximately one-sixth of the syndicate are below expectations, while nearly one-third are above. One reading 
group has students with specific learning needs, and struggles to focus, which has made it challenging for them to learn 
high-frequency words and build strong letter knowledge. A third group, who are below expectations, show initial traits of 
dyslexia. 
 

For writing, about one-tenth of the syndicate are below expectations, while three students are above. The team began the 
year with many reluctant writers, but most are now making progress. Continued daily sessions and high expectations are 
essential for further growth. Some of the students who are below expectations for writing are now receiving reading recovery 
support. 
 

In mathematics, a larger number—almost a quarter—are below expectations, with 8 students above. Many of those below 
are lacking foundational number knowledge. Overall, a number of children are below expectations across all areas. 

 

PASTORAL CARE 

11 Students 
identified with 
needs to be 
monitored and 
supported 

A number of students at our school have been identified with speech delays, global developmental delays, as well as wellbeing and health 
concerns. These learning needs have been diagnosed, and in response, the school has implemented learning assistant support. We also work 
closely with the Ministry of Education Learning Support Team, the RTLB team, and whānau to ensure these students receive the best possible 
support. Additionally, the school has access to a school counsellor, funded by the Board and PTA, and the Koru team has utilized student 
counselling services. This support has been invaluable in promoting the students’ learning development. 

 

Target Group for Maths 16 students  

WHY this target group  These children have only achieved: 
Number knowledge at 6 months: x  12 students 
Number knowledge at 1 year  X 4 students 

 
 

Target Plan Identified Needs 
Focusing - What has been identified as a key focus 

area?Therefore worth spending time on? 
(observation/evidence based) 

Actions/Strategies 
Teaching Inquiry - What strategies  or skills 

will I implement that would make an 
impact and learning shift.? (evidenced 

based) 

Reflection 
Learning Inquiry - What happened 
as a result of the targeted focus. 

What did you see as the Strengths, 
Opportunities to develop further 
(next steps) and overall results .  

Term 2/3/4  Low number knowledge which is impacting on their 
ability to solve simple addition and subtraction 
problems 
 

5 students - to take for ALIM type programme 
and work on numbers in ESOL time 
Room 14 - In small groups in class work on 
numbers to 100 then build this to 1000, two times 

●​ 5/14 have moved to at. All 
children have made progress 
with number knowledge but 
some have not consolidated 



 a week work with Tracey for 20 minutes on same 
thing.  (Wed/Thus) 
Room 13 - 1 student - 2 x a week with Tracey, 
numbers to 20 then 100 (Mon/Tue) and adding 
and subtracting with materials to 10 
5 students numbers to 100 with Mrs Bain 1 x week 
and small group with Monique 
Room 12 - In small groups in class work on 
numbers to 100 then build this to 1000, two times 
a week work with Tracey for 20 minutes on the 
class focus.  (Tue/Wed/Thus)ESoL hours 
 

this enough that they can 
confidently use this 
independently. 

●​ Changes in expectations in 
number knowledge in the new 
curriculum (100 - 1000)  have 
made it harder for those 
children who were already 
struggling with the number 
knowledge. 

●​ All Year 3 who are still below are 
ESOL and all  new to Windsor 
North School  

It has been great to see all children 
make progress with their maths, 
especially 5 of our below children 
moving to at. 
Some more targeted support is 
required for those children who are 
below, especially at the moment 
with structured literacy being the 
main focus.  Even though we have 
a number of teachers trained in 
ALIM it is tricky for this programme to 
be run successfully within the class 
programme. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Target Group Reading 11 students 

WHY this target group  Reading at a low level because they struggle with decoding/speech/diagnosed learning needs.  By the end of the year we expect 
all children to be reading at the expected level or to have made significant progress towards this. 

 

Sprint Cycle Identified Needs 
Focusing - What has been identified as a key 

focus area?Therefore worth spending time on? 
(observation/evidence based) 

Actions/Strategies 
Teaching Inquiry - What strategies  or 
skills will I implement that would make 

an impact and learning shift.? 
(evidenced based) 

Reflection 
Learning Inquiry - What happened as a result of 

the targeted focus. What did you see as the 
Strengths, Opportunities to develop further (next 

steps) and overall results .  

 Term 3/4  Reading at low level because they struggle with 
decoding/speech/ADHD 

Reduced number of reading groups so 
there is extra time for word building/ 
decoding sounds during reading time at 
I.C.E   Mrs Kiddy to take parts of groups or 
whole group to support 
 
 

●​ 6 out of 10 children have progressed 
to the expected level, though most of 
these students are only just at this level 
and will need to be closely monitored 
next year. Two students who are still 
below expectations have made 
significant progress, moving up 12 
reading levels. This improvement has 
been supported through a 
combination of extra teacher support, 
the Early Words Programme with 
RTLB-funded teacher aide support, 
and reading recovery. 

●​ The Year 2 students who are well 
below expectations have also moved 
up 12 reading levels this year, thanks 
to support in the classroom, reading 
recovery, and funded teacher aide 
time through RTLB. Some of these 
students are ESOL, and they have 
recently started or received different 
forms of support. They are now 



receiving additional help outside of 
school. 

●​ All Year 3 students who are still below 
expectations are ESOL and new to 
Windsor North School. 

 

Target Group  3 students 

WHY this target group  Reading at a low level because they struggle to comprehend. 
 

Sprint Cycle Identified Needs 
Focusing - What has been identified as a key focus 

area?Therefore worth spending time on? 
(observation/evidence based) 

Actions/Strategies 
Teaching Inquiry - What strategies  or skills 

will I implement that would make an 
impact and learning shift.? (evidenced 

based) 

Reflection 
Learning Inquiry - What happened as 
a result of the targeted focus. What 

did you see as the Strengths, 
Opportunities to develop further (next 

steps) and overall results .  
 Term 3/4  Reading at a low level because they struggle to 

comprehend. 
Discussion and retelling the main parts of the 
story. Explaining why and proving answers by 
showing in text. 
Mrs Kiddy to take parts of groups or whole 
group to support 
 
 
 

We are fortunate to have Mrs. 
Kiddy volunteer in our syndicate 
three times a week. This has 
allowed a teacher to focus more 
on our lower-level readers, 
providing them with targeted 
support. 
Mrs. Kiddy has worked diligently 
on improving comprehension. 
After reading with the teacher, 
students spend time with her 
discussing the text. One student 
has moved to the expected level, 
although comprehension remains 
an area for improvement. 
Another student's ability to discuss 
texts has improved in group 
settings, and now this needs to 
transfer to independent work. 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



         Kowhai and Kauri Analysis of Variance - Year 4-6 2024 

 

Kowhai Yr 4-5 Team Cohort High Level Big Picture OVERVIEW    

Number of Boys 
Year 4 = 18 
 
Year 5 = 23 

Number of Girls 
Year 4 = 22 
 
Year 5 = 22 

Learning Needs  
Total 
RTLB/ Learning  
HHN 1 
HCN 1 
Behavior 2 

Number of Maori 
Total = 16 
 
Boys 6 
Girls 10 

Number of Pacificka 
Total = 3 
 
Boys 1 
Girls 2 

Number of ESOL 
Total 15  (18%) 
Breakdown 
Asian  
Refugee  
Other 

Kauri  Yr6 Team Cohort High Level Big Picture OVERVIEW    
 

Number of Boys 
31 

Number of Girls 
26 

Totals 
57 

Learning Needs  
 
RtLit - 1 
HCN - 1 
ESOL - 4 

Number of Maori 
10 
 
 

Number of 
Pasifika 
2 
 
 

Number of ESOL 
5 

 

Assessment  
Year 4-5 

Reading Notes Writing Notes Mathematics and Stats Notes 

Below Expectation 3 (Y4 = 3 , Y5 = 0) Y4  
10% under expectations. 
(3/4 ESOL, 1/4 
behaviour/trauma) 
 
Y5  
2% under expectations. 
(1/1 
developmental/medical) 

7 (Y4 = 5 , Y5 = 2) Y4  
42.5% under 
expectations. (6/17 are 
ESOL, 2 /17 
behaviour/trauma, 2/17 
high absence), 1/17 
medical, developmental. 
 
Y5 
26.5% under 
expectations. (2/12, 
medical/developmental, 
2/12 ESOL).   

4 (Y4 = 4 , Y5 = 0 ) Y4 
15% under expectations. 
(3/6 ESOL, ⅙ 
behaviour/trauma, 2 high 
absence) 
 
Y5  
9% under expectations. 
(2/4,medical/developme
ntal). 
 
 

Beginning 2 (Y4 = 1 , Y5 = 1) 22 (Y4 = 12 , Y5 =10) 6 (Y4 = 2 , Y5 =4 ) 

At 52 52 60 

Above 28 4 15 

 
 
 



 

Summary 
Overview TEAM 
Data Yr 4-5 
 
What is missing that we 
need to investigate? 

Main Target: Year 4 Writing 
●​ There has been a 10% decline from last year. 
●​ 5 New Year 4 English Language Learners (12.5% of the cohort) joined Windsor North School in 2024. 

While Year 4 data looks concerning, we are mindful of the 5 new English Language Learners. Excluding these students, 29% (12 out of 
41) of the remaining students show positive shifts. Among these 12: 

●​ 2 are English Language Learners from previous years 
●​ 1 received RTLB support for learning and behaviour 
●​ 2 were part of reading recovery 
●​ 6 have received additional support from a teacher aide since Term 2 

What’s Next? 
Phonics: 

●​ Ten students (9 Year 4 and 7 Year 5) have been selected for a phonics intervention group, led by an experienced teacher aide 
using the iDeal phonics programme. This is in addition to in-class targeted support. 

Motivation/Engagement: 
●​ We aim to balance structured writing activities (genre-based around inquiry) with high-interest tasks based on personal 

interests, group/peer writing, and quick writes to keep students engaged. 
Integration: 

●​ We are seeking more opportunities for writing integration across all subjects, such as "reading projects" where students 
research and take notes, Chapter Chat activities that include writing and spelling follow-ups, and other meaningful activities. 
As students gain independence, integrating writing becomes easier. 

Teacher Aide Support: 
●​ Focus areas for teacher aide support include: 

○​ Teaching compound sentences 
○​ Dictating sentences 
○​ General support with idea generation and holding ideas 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Assessment 
Year 6 

Reading Writing Mathematics and Stats 

T2 T4 Notes T2 
 

T4 
 

Notes T2 T4 Notes 

Below Expectation 4 4 Term 2 
2 ESOL who have only been 
in NZ (a completely new 
language since start of T2) 
 
1 student receiving 
reading/writing support 
through RtLit 
 
Term 4 
One shift from at to working 
towards, however not a 
surprise as they were 
identified as at-risk in 
previous TAPs. Transition 
notes provided to next year’s 
teacher/school for 
interventions and support 

6 6 Term 2 
1 student receiving 
reading/writing support 
through RtLit 
 
Speech to text assistive 
technology offered for one 
student which pulls back 
their surface feature and 
fluency ability and 
assessment. 
 
Term 4 
A number of shifts. Two 
from beginning to now 
working  AT. One from at to 
above. 
 
New areas of literacy 
assessed between terms 2 
and 4 to justify the 
movement 

3 3 Term 4 
One student 
moving up from at 
to above. 
 
 
 
 

Beginning 2 3 6 4 5 4 

At 15 14 30 31 26 27 

Above 32 32 12 13 22 22 

Well above 3 3 2 2 0 0 

totals 56 56 56 56 56 56 

 

 

Summary 
Overview 
TEAM Data - 
Year 6 
 
What is missing that 
we need to 
investigate? 
 
 

Reading 

●​ Reading Age: 38 students (67%) are reading at 11 years or higher based on texts with comprehension scores of 70% or higher. 
●​ Accuracy: 39 students have a reading accuracy of 94% or higher, with 2 students achieving 84% and 90%. 

We continue to see a large number of above-level readers, based on data from PROBE assessments, in-class recordings, WNS reading 
progressions, and day-to-day observations. Regular guided sessions are provided for students working below level, using engaging 
resources such as Junior Journals, Part 1 & 2 Journals, Ready to Read texts, and resources from services like Resource Cupboard and 
Instructional Series. Above-level readers are given level-appropriate texts like Level 4 Journals and Journal Studies. 

Term 3/4 Observations: 

●​ Trends are similar to Term 2. 
●​ Continuing subscription services like Resource Cupboard for teachers and Read Theory/Quizizz for students have been beneficial. 
●​ Independent reading resources kept above-level readers engaged while teachers focused on supporting students with fluency 

and comprehension. 



●​ PROBE assessments are used to guide the next steps in comprehension activities, supported by KEY INTO resources. 

 

Writing 

●​ From our latest writing sample, we identified a need to focus on deeper writing features, such as developing and extending ideas 
and language features. This is our focus for Terms 3 and 4, aiming to support emerging and reluctant writers. 

Term 3/4 Focus: 

●​ Recent professional learning built on developing and extending ideas. 
●​ Literacy sessions focused on sentence structures and extending ideas. 
●​ Introduced concepts like "The who and the do / subject and predicate." 
●​ Some students are consolidating the Essential Word List, and we've exposed new strengths through new genres. 

 

PAT Data (Y2Y vs. Twice-Yearly) 

●​ WNS currently uses PAT data for year-to-year analysis in reading comprehension, writing (punctuation and grammar), and 
mathematics/statistics. However, this data cannot be used formatively for each current year. 

●​ Kauri teachers would welcome the introduction of twice-yearly data collection, if it's easy to administer and provides detailed, 
comprehensive results to inform our teaching. 

 

Student Management Data Comparison 

●​ Comparative data for individual year groups is challenging without clean data. The transition to using Hero SMS for a full year will 
make data analysis easier, allowing for clear mid-year and end-of-year comparisons. 

●​ Current Kauri roll is 58, with clean data adjusted to 56 students (due to one new student and one unenrolled student). 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Target Group for Year 
4-5 Writing 
Development 

Year 4/5 Phonics x 9 students 
Year 5s -   x7 students 
 

WHY this target group  Writing fluency and confidence is hindered by lack of phonological knowledge.  
Class phonics, more teacher time than other children.  
Some ESOL support with phonics with Brendon 
Teacher and teacher aide support breaking down sounds   

 
 

Target Plan 
Yr 4-5 

Identified Needs 
Focusing - What has been identified as a key focus 

area?Therefore worth spending time on? 
(observation/evidence based) 

Actions/Strategies 
Teaching Inquiry - What strategies  or 
skills will I implement that would make 

an impact and learning shift.? 
(evidenced based) 

Reflection 
Learning Inquiry - What happened 
as a result of the targeted focus. 

What did you see as the Strengths, 
Opportunities to develop further 
(next steps) and overall results .  

Term 2/ 3/4   
Spelling and phonics 

●​ Class phonics, more teacher time than 
other children.  

●​ ESOL phonics learning with Brendon 
●​ Teacher and teacher aide writing 

groups - breaking down sounds, child 
verbalise not teacher. 

●​ Specific sentence level learning with 
teacher  

●​ aide. (compound sentences). 

The phonics lessons, both in class and 
boost groups with Kellie, have 
proven valuable, showing positive 
shifts in data. Teachers have noticed 
that even students working at 
expectation benefit from revisiting 
the basics. For example, some strong 
spellers were unaware of the spelling 
rules behind certain word groups. 
Additionally, many students 
struggled to identify long and short 
vowel sounds during whole-class 
lessons. 

We’re excited to continue our 
structured literacy journey next year, 
focusing on new ways to support 
students who are harder to move 
while also addressing basic 



knowledge gaps for those meeting 
expectations. 

The post-test data from the Phonics 
Intervention Group showed 
encouraging gains across all cases. 
While the progress was not yet 
sufficient to move these students out 
of the ‘towards expectations’ 
bracket, their improved ability to 
segment and blend sounds—both 
with the teacher aide and 
independently in their classroom 
writing—is a crucial step that could 
lead to significant progress over time. 
 

Looking ahead to 2025, it will be 
essential to build on this phonics 
foundation, reinforcing independent 
literacy skills and behaviours to boost 
confidence and accelerate progress 
relative to their peers. The new 
structured literacy practices 
mandated for 2025 will support this 
goal, along with exploring additional 
opportunities for intervention groups. 

 
 

Target Group for Yr 6 
Writing 

Reluctant Writers (not currently receiving support): 
14 students 

WHY this target group  While some may sit within AT for writing they risk falling behind because of their reluctance to write (from a raft of reasons; ability, 
effort, attendance, confidence, etc.) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Target Plan Identified Needs 
Focusing - What has been identified as a key focus 

area?Therefore worth spending time on? 
(observation/evidence based) 

Actions/Strategies 
Teaching Inquiry - What strategies  or skills will I 
implement that would make an impact and 

learning shift.? (evidenced based) 

Reflection 
Learning Inquiry - What 

happened as a result of the 
targeted focus. What did you 

see as the Strengths, 
Opportunities to develop further 
(next steps) and overall results .  

Term 2/3  From our latest e-AsTTle writing sample we 
identified a need for this target group to add 
detail to their writing; for example use of language 
features and extending ideas 
 
Planning and brainstorm process also needs 
attention. This will support the need to extend 
ideas and add rich deeper feature writing. 
 
 
 

Lots of creative discussion and scaffolding before 
writing. “Think it, say it, write it” 
 
Discuss and develop topics of interest for all 
students in this target group.  
 
To support planning to make sure they have main 
ideas and language available. 
 
Strategies: 
THINK IT, SAY IT, WRITE IT 
Scaffolding questions: 

-​ What more can you tell me/say? 
-​ What happens next 

Development of quick writes 
and more visuals and story 
starters have assisted 
reluctant writers and the 
planning structures of our 10 
focus students 8 students 
have made shifts within their 
level and are just below at. 
Next Steps for 2025 
● Stronger explicit 
development in spelling 
using the Code Liz Kane and 
a sequence in the 
development of sounds and 
words. 
●​ Using structured Literacy 

catch up set Phonics 
booster groups  

● Recrafting making punchy 
sentences and editing is an 
area of focus.  

 

 

Hot Spot Target Group Year 6 - Work Habits Developing self efficacy with students’ learning (independence, resilience and responsibility)18 Students 

WHY this target group  To help build work habits with their learning that supports the transition to high school and beyond  
(independence, resilience and responsibility). 

 

Target Plan Identified Needs 
Focusing - What has been identified as a key focus 

area?Therefore worth spending time on? 
(observation/evidence based) 

Actions/Strategies 
Teaching Inquiry - What strategies  or 
skills will I implement that would make 

Reflection 
Learning Inquiry - What happened as 
a result of the targeted focus. What 

did you see as the Strengths, 



an impact and learning shift.? 
(evidenced based) 

Opportunities to develop further (next 
steps) and overall results .  

 Term 3 /4 An need for students to develop across a number of 
key competencies and STRIVE values 

Increased accountability for the 
target group with firm deadlines and 
regular check-ins.  
 

Celebrating moments of success and 
encouraging responsible behaviour 
when students have shown growth 
with genuine effort across KCs and 
STRIVE values. 

Development of student agency and 
effort ratings where more explicit skill 
development on what and how to use 
values expectations with social and 
learning situations have seen a 
positive shift.  
Further development in 2025 is 
required at the upper end of the 
school. 
Developing the using HERO student 
self monitoring will assist 
Specific focus on resilience. And 
taking responsibility is an area of focus 
we need to go deeper 

 
 
 



  

 

Windsor North School  
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Our Vision and Our Values 



 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

What do we expect to see by the end of the year? 
To have implemented a cohesive clear progression learning design for Year 1-3, Year 4-6, teams and staff.  The learning design will outline expectations, processes systems and teaching elements to grow 
and continue to embed: 

● STRIVE (PB4L) / Mitey and the Mana Model 
● Learning competencies through Tahi Time, ICE, STEM and Project base learning within our school.  

This will form our learners profile Year 0-6. 
Students to become confident agentic learners (own and drive their learning) with support of their teachers and learning scaffolds.  
They will be able to talk through their learning to support what they can do successfully, what their next learning steps will be to continue learning progress within English and Mathematics/ 
Statistics.  
Annual 
Target/Goal 

Actions Who is 
Responsible 

Resources Required 
 

Timeframe 
 

How will you measure success? 
 

1a Grow 
collective 
teacher 
efficacy in 
learning 
competencies 
 

PB4L – Develop new behaviour tracking system within HERO – use 
the data gathered to look at patterns and areas of focus 
Develop a new positive tracking process within the school using 
STRIVE/ Mana Model and monitor development of students and 
look at focus points: 
● Student/ staff developing the profiles and what success looks like  
● Across school form the Strive / Mitey overview Year 1-6  
● Student leadership - to streamline and develop process 
● Keeping Mitey and Strive alive within the school making it visible 
Learning Through Competencies 
● Development of progression framework on focus and skill 

development within the key competencies  
● Break down what success looks like, and how will we measure 

success 
● Form common understanding of the progressions through Tahi 

Time / ICE/ STEM/ to Project Based Learning  

Lead for PB4L 
Teachers 
 
Teachers/ 
Leadership 
 
 
Year 6 
looking at 
student 
leadership 
 
Team 
Leaders / 
Leadership 
Team 

PB4L Tier 2 2024  
 
$10,000 to support 
STRIVE/ MITEY and PB4L 
developments in tracking 
and monitoring. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Inquiry and Literacy 
Development- Team 
Budgets 

Term 1 set up 
 
 
Term 2-3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Ongoing 
development 
over 22024 

STRIVE/ PB4L – year on year increase 
in the number of students recognised 
by their peers, staff and Whānau 
demonstrating STRIVE 
PB4L Set review 
 
 
 
 
 
Learning Competencies Progression 
development – In 2024 60% 
understanding,  of our WHY and 
forming coherent practices across 
the school.  

1b Build 
frameworks 
for student 
agency 
 

● Development of scaffold explicit teaching points and support 
reference material / exemplars on progression points with focus 
on Maths and Writing for students to use.  

● Visit schools to explore how they are working in the development 
of student agency – transition (early childhood/ Junior High 
Schools 

● Development of the library project   

Team 
Leaders / 
Leadership 
Team 
 

Professional Learning 
Development and 
resource support $2000 

Term 2 to 
Term 4 

Student Agency - Shared 
understanding, within Mathematics/ 
English practices. 
Shared understanding of progressions 
and what and how we are assessing.  
In 2024 60% of staff understanding, our 
WHY and application of practices 
across the school.  

                Annual Plan - Leaderful Learning 

Our Activators (Strategic Goal)    Initiatives 
 

   What will this look like? 
 

 Our Values 
 

LEADERFUL LEARNING  
Our team (students and teachers) 
leading great learning. 

1a Grow collective teacher 
efficacy in learning competencies. 
1b Build frameworks for student 
agency. 

1a Kaiako/teachers sharing high expectations and evidence of growth 
with each other, ākonga/learners and their whānau through STRIVE 
(PB4L), Mitey and Skill Based Learning Design. 
1b Students along with their teachers will be able to talk and assess 
learning at a deeper level to form next learning progress steps with focus 
in English and Mathematics/ Statistics.  

Whanaungatanga 
Building 
Relationships 



 
 

Self-Review Progress – Leaderful Learning 

2024 Building Foundations - Grow collective teacher efficacy in learning competencies and build frameworks for student agency 

Green - On track with focus Orange - Developing Red - Pause 
 

 

Reflection Term 1 Term 2 Term 3 Term 4 
1a  
Grow collective teacher 
efficacy in learning 
competencies within 
Mitey/PB4L and Strive 
 

PB4L development - We submitted a PB4L application 
and have  been successful by being awarded $2000 . 
Application attached around our focus and what in 
looking at adding interactive small group games for 
students who find it difficult to interact with others PB4L 
Application - Windsor North School.pdf 
o We are working with Active Southland to borrow 

play marking stencils 
o At present we are looking at where we can put 

some of the play markings around the school  
o Then we will cost the paint and work with Barry to 

look at painting the markings end of term 3 
● Emma and Debbie attended a PB4L course around 

play therapy in helping develop social skills for students 
with niggle behaviour. Emma will trial this on Thursday 
lunchtimes in the middle / senior school. We have this 
operating with our younger students on a targeted 
basis 

● Mitey- this has dropped off a bit and our next step is 
reconnect this and weave into our programmes. 
Professional learning discussion  

Looking at tracking and using 
HERO for repeated minors in 
class  Using the app on duty to 
record any major issues 
Review Major and Minor process 
and what we add to HERO 
 Minor Behaviour Teacher Process 
DRAFT Major Behaviour School 
Process  
Also making a restorative wall to 
help thinking and process 
 WNS Wall Support to working 
through Behaviour.pdf and to 
Have a step card for duty  

 
 

Implementation of a 
Strive Wall and 
Behaviour thinking 
cards 
 
Embedding and 
developing consistent 
practice of using and 
applying STRIVE 
values/Mitey emotions 
into the playground.  
Teachers using a 
restorative approach 
 
Monitoring behaviour 
and playground issues 
on Hero through data 
analysis 

 WNS  Strategic Focus group planning 
.docx 
● All staff begin to use the Behaviour 

template and share on Hero for major 
behaviours  

● Re develop the minor Behaviour doc 
● PB4L Expectations relating to 

behaviours  
● Collect student and staff voice around 

wellbeing - have done students - 
results to share in committee 

● Data analysis sharing improved trend 
of students using STRIVE ??decrease 
?? minor niggles 

● Data also showed hotspots in the field, 
scooter track and senior playground 

 
Next steps  
- 2025 define play spaces across the 
school. 
- Introduction ?? of Mitey playground 
look at student led PALS development 
which will be a whole school focus. 

1b  
Build frameworks for student 
agency 
 

● MITEY- Recently Jan and I presented the development 
of our MItey programme in our school at a Southland 
Mitey Forum. Our development was peer reviewed 
which was well received and it was wonderful to see 
that our programme design showed  depth, linkages to 
our vision and values. We are well placed for stage 2 
and embedding the developments. MASTER School 
Presentation (1).pptx 

● One of our next steps is to build the matrix development 
across the school and weave the Mana Model more 
into what we do. 

Developing rubrics for students to see progression 
development of learning key competency skills and 
expectations – step in developing student agency 
● This was rolled out in building a foundation programme 

in Year 0-1 based on needs. 
● The key competency programme has been named 

Tahi Time, focusing on learner skills in cutting, sharing, 
taking turns, working together. 

● Year 2-3 have trailed ICE Time – Innovative Creative 
Engaged learning working on collaborative practice. 

 
Maths - NZ Maths Overviews have been trialled with core 
development on strand and maths.  Adaptation to the 
long term plan has been made within teams to support 
needs. 

● Toolbox used every day roll, I cans, 
discussing the Mitey visuals - mitey 
lead workshops – November 

Akonga Wellbeing Survey Report.pdf 

 



 
 

● Student agency – talking about their maths has been 
formed.  Next steps to form rubrics but have held off 
until new curriculum refresh documents come forward. 

● Oral Reflection – talking about their maths. 
 

 Next Steps 
 
 
 
 

We are currently reviewing this in our restorative justice 
practices to look at how we support positive discussions as 
part of PB4L and tracking. Focus on the antecedents but 
also how we make it right and learn from it. Link to the draft 
template below  WNS Situation Template - MITEY/ STRIVE 
and MANA model included 

Next steps with the new curriculum implementation in 2025 to use Hero to share student understanding 
and evidence of obtaining skills. 

 
  



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
What do we expect to see by the end of the year? 
● Our Mathematics and Statistics Programme reflects Te Mātaiaho. 
● It has clear programme expectations to ensure coherence and progress from 6 months to end of Year 6 to support continued learning shift for our akonga. 
● It outlines assessment expectations and explicit teaching practices in line with the Common Practice Model. 
● Form a strategic activator reference group to support the commencement review of English (reading and writing) that will reflect the developments of Te Mātaiaho. Including: assessment 

capabilities, learning progress scaffolds in: spelling/phonic development/reading and structured literacy/writing/visual and oral language. Recognising our local stories and Te Tiriti o Waitangi. 
● This will support the development in raising writing shift and progress within our school. 

 
Annual 
Target/ Goal 

Actions Who is 
Responsible 

Resources Required 
 

Timeframe 
 

How will you measure success? 
 

2a Review 
school 
programmes in 
line with Te 
Mātaiaho 
(New Zealand 
Curriculum 
Refresh) and 
Common 
Practice 
Model.  
 

Mathematics: 
Programme Design 
● Form our programme design having fidelity and coherence 

on our WHY, Our Practices and what resources we use 
● Linking to new curriculum refresh developments within Te 

Mātaiaho and Common Practice Model 
Assessment 
● PACT tool – Moderaton process with maths levelling. 

Development of Mathematics Page within Hero Student 
Reporting (Trial development and seek staff/ student and 
parent feedback) 

● Using the long term plan across the school – hitting all 8 
aspects every 6 months End of 2024 to have a solid WNS 
Mathematics programme structure 

● Unpacking the understanding around basic facts teaching 
the use of resource 

English (Reading/ Writing/ Oral/ Visual) 
● Review our practices in relation to new curriculum refresh 

information (progressions, key explicit teaching 
components- spelling, phonics, English structures  

● Recognising local stories we can use  
Assessment 
● Development of English Page within Hero Student Reporting 

(Trial development and seek staff/ student and parent 
feedback) 

 

Lead by the  
Leadership Team 
 
 
Teaching Team 
Key part of ERO 
Partnership 
development 
 
Support from MOE 
facilitators and 
Evaluative 
Associates 
 
 
 
 
 
Lead by the  
Leadership Team - 
form an activator 
group 

 

Working with 
Evaluative Associates 
and other 
Mathematic Support 
Agencies 
$6000 to support 
professional 
Development 2024  
 
 
 
Building classroom 
Resource 
development for 
programme 
implementation PTA/ 
Board $3000 
contribution   
 

 

Term 1 review 
 
Term 2-3 forming 
assessment 
practices and 6 
month 8 aspects 
plan 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Ongoing 
development over 
Term 1-3 

Form a Mathematics framework – 
including long term plan overview, 
assessment guidelines linking to 
HERO data collection, progression 
development and common 
practice model recommendations 
by the end of 2024.  
 
2025 implementation, monitor and 
further guidance.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
English - research, review current 
programme design in relation to Te 
Mātaiaho  
2024 -2025 development and build 
programme design based on new 
guidelines 
 

Our Activators (Strategic Goal)    Initiatives 
 

   What will this look like? 
 

 Our Values 
 

                Annual Plan - Continuous Improvement 

CONTINOUS IMPROVEMENT 
Growing coherent practice. 

 

2a Review school programmes in 
line with Te Mātaiaho (New 
Zealand Curriculum Refresh) and 
Common Practice Model. 

2a Review of Mathematics Programme to ensure coherence in 
both practice and assessment align. 
2b. Commence the development of review in reading and 
writing programme development. 

Manawaroa 
Resilient Thinkers 

 
 



 
 

 

Reflection Term 1 Term 2 Term 3 Term 4 
2a  
Review school 
programmes in line with 
Te Mātaiaho (New 
Zealand Curriculum 
Refresh) and Common 
Practice Model.  
 

New Curriculum Refresh  
At the end of Term 1 following a term of professional 
development in maths,  staff lead by the leadership 
team formed a Number strategy and Basic Facts 
framework below is an outline of our key principles 
we are working on while we await to the review of 
the maths programme:Expectation in our 
Mathematics Development in the implementation 
phase of our review  includes: 
● Trailing over Term 2 the following DRAFT Master 

WNS -  Which Facts are important - Progression 
Overview linking to NZ Curriculum Refresh 

● Ensuring we are developing our DRAFT 
Principles  as outline in this document Basic 
Facts Practices  - Forming our Beliefs and 
Practices to ensure we have  Coherence and 
Fidelity across the school This document is still 
under construction and teams working on this 
over the next few weeks  

● Balance of programme design using the NZ 
Maths Long Term Plans - Ensuring by end of T 2 
we have covered all the strands - The staff are 
working through the NZ Maths overview the 
current one the MOE provide is not working for 
the teams, so further investigation and 
development an adaptation is working through 
the teams. Key focuses is strand and number 

● Ensuring we have rich tasks woven within our 
programme  (Rob Proffitt- White)Rapid Routines 

● We continue to develop 1 hr reading writing 
and maths and over the remainder of the term 
we will look at planning development and 
review as part of the professional growth cycle. 

 

At present classes are working 
through mid year assessment/ 
data entry into HERO and mid 
year reporting  
Mid year reports will go out Week 
1, term 3 on the Friday 26 July 
We have been deliberate with the 
timing to ensure we have all the 
right settings/ and set up in the 
back end of the HERO 
programme - there is always a lot 
to iron out when working with a 
new programme for the first time. 
Staff have overall been positive- 
there will always be niggles as we 
work out systems and doing it for 
the first time  
Report format will be able to be 
accessed on the HERO app and 
will be emailed out 
 
The student progress graphs in 
reading, writing and mathematics 
are based on the past report and 
on the current assessment 
criteria.  
* Please note we are not using the 
draft curriculum refresh as the 
draft is now under review. 
 
 

DRAFT MOE Board WNS 2024 
MID YEAR Achievement 
Summary Board 
 

WNS  Strategic Focus group planning -KC  
Play/Project Development Leaderful 
Learning.docx 
● Share ‘Growing key competencies 

through play based learning’ summary 
doc change project as a draft starting 
point with Focus team - Pikopiko are 
sharing class spaces in the afternoon to 
have turns at taking Tahi Time - 
students selected to focus on specific 
goals ie; this week perseverance  

● TAPS goals - links to PGCs - leader 
feedback/observations planned for early 
T4 - happening week 3 and 4 

 

 

Self-Review Progress – Continuous Improvement 

2024 Building Foundations  
- Review school programmes in line with Te Mātaiaho (New Zealand Curriculum Refresh)  
- Common Practice Model within the focus curriculum areas of Mathematics and Statistics  
- English develop a process for review 

Green - On track with focus Orange - Developing Red - Pause 
 



 
 

2b  
Mathematics Framework 
development 
 

Implementing the revised NZ Maths long term plan – 
linking to development of 2023 learnings.  Forming 
WNS review o basic facts. 

Due to changes within the NZ Maths curriculum we have paused the development of student rubrics and 
assessment data to go on Hero linked to specific goals.  Only the over all teacher judgement (OTJ) will be 
recorded end of Term 2 and end of Term 3.  This is due to unknown new changes and the mandate to use 
structured mathematics resources. 
 
With the pause our focus in maths is to research the different providers in maths resources to reflect our school 
needs and to meet the new curriculum. 
 
To continue using maths long term plan from NZ Maths.  Assess according to level 1-4 objectives.  Assess in 
number/strand. 
 
Continue to build and develop problem solving applications within the maths daily programme, where students 
work/practice new learning.   

2c 
English process review 
steps 
 

 Investigating structured literacy approaches 
- The Leadership team has visited schools to look at 2 approaches 
to Structured literacy in action  
- We are working through a PMI analysis to make an informed 
decision on what best tools we can  
- Jan and Debbie hope to travel to CHCH to view a working 
school Yr 0-8 in the development of structured literacy and writing 
Wk 2 term 3 
- We will be hosting a structured literacy workshop 14-15 October 
at school for over 80 people 
Strategic focus development Key Competency development and 
Inquiry Practices to support engagement and skills development . 
Click onto the teams strategic collaborative leadership plan, 
KC / Project Development Leaderful Learning 

Training of Structured Literacy 
commences with all teaching staff Year 
0-6.  Three full day sessions (The Code), 
two zoom meetings and one face to 
face (Writing/Phonics). 
 
Next Steps 2025 easttle training in 
reading, writing and maths/phonics 
assessment 

 Next Steps 
 
 
 
 

60 Minutes a Day Reflection tool showing evidence 
to the Board / ERO we are meeting the MOE 
mandate 
Teams 60 Minutes a Day Reflection Tool Pikopiko 
Planning Reflection Tool Based on the MOE 
Planning reflection tool  

 

  Staff have commenced Structured 
Literacy Training with Literacy 
Connections. There is 6 aspects to work 
through within this area: 

1. Reading 
2. Spelling 
3. Writing 
4. Development of skills across the 

curriculum application and 
teaching in a more structured 
approach 

5. Assessment 
6. Using Assessment 

 

 
  



 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

  

Self-Review Progress – Collaborative Connections 

Green - On track with focus Orange - Developing Red - Pause 
 2024 Building Foundations  
- Work with whanau, and local iwi to form a strong cultural responsiveness approach - honouring Te Tiriti o Waitangi 
- Enhance engagement 
What do we expect to see by the end of the year? 
● Working with Whanau and Iwi to form a cultural implementation plan for our school linking local curriculum, our school values, local stories, history and Te Reo and Tikanga Maori and Te Tiriti o 

Waitangi. 
● Enhancing communication and learning partnership with HERO development. 

Annual 
Target/ Goal 

Actions Who is 
Responsible 

Resources Required 
 

Timeframe 
 

How will you measure 
success? 
 

3a Work with 
whanau, and 
local iwi to 
form a strong 
cultural 
responsiveness 
approach - 
honouring Te 
Tiriti o Waitangi 
 

Development of providing an environment where we give 
effect to Te Tiriti o Waitangi by developing scaffold steps and 
weaving our multicultural fabric within all we do 
● Board and School working with local iwi to ensure we are 

using the correct stories, understanding and developing 
within the school the correct local tikanga 

● Board development in ensuring all polices are being formed 
and consulted on and reflect Māori, mātauranga Māori 

● Development of Kapa Haka within the school linking with 
whanau in forming ideas to develop school karakia, school 
Haka, school waiata as a school and with expertise 

● Have at least 1 whanau hui per term - Engage and collect 
voice understandings from all stakeholders 

Review te reo Maori programme Year 1-6 looking and seeking 
other school ideas for 2025 development.  

 
 
Board working in 
collaboration 
with the 
leadership team  
 
Kapa Haka 
Tutors/ school 
lead 
 
 
 

Waihopi Iwi Support and 
NZSTA training in 
planning and 
development. 
 
Look at Te Reo 
Development and 
ongoing support – 
2024/2025 
 

Term 2-4 With external supports and 
whanau, form a cohesive 
plan that reflects the 
diversity of our community.  
 
During 2024 continue 
whanau consultation, and 
form draft plan   
 
 

3b Enhance 
engagement 
 

Provide greater opportunity for connections - focus on our ESOL 
families connecting within the school.  Look at buddy systems 
● Share HERO developments through student / parent 

sessions regularly through newsletters and whanau hui’s 
● Development of the library project – connecting 

community association / using strengths within the 
community – student agency 

 

Lead By Admin, 
Leadership and 
Teaching Staff 
Team 
Teachers, 
Leadership Team 
and Board 

$6000 for set up of HERO 
2024.  
 
Support ongoing 
development and 
training 
$1000  
 

Term 1 set up stage / 
parent App 
Term 2-3 developing the 
app/ Hero capabilities – 
focus on connecting with 
families/ newsletter and 
parent communication 
 

Enhancing Communication 
-  Increase the percentage 
of parents/students being 
informed and connected. 
using the new HERO system. 

                Annual Plan - Collaborative Connections 

Our Activators    Initiatives 
 

   What will this look like? 
 

 Our Values 
 

COLLABORATUVE CONNECTIONS 
Building positive partnerships with 
whanau and our local community 

 

3a Work with whanau, and local iwi to 
form a strong cultural responsiveness 
approach- honouring Te Tiriti o Waitangi 
3b Enhance engagement 

3a development and implementation of a local curriculum plan 
linking values, local stories, history and Te Reo and Tikanga Maori 
3b Enhancing communication and learning partnership with 
HERO development 

Te Tiriti o Waitangi 
Inclusivity 

 



 
 

 

Reflection Term 1 Term 2 Term 3 Term 4 
3a  
Work with whanau, and 
local iwi to form a strong 
cultural responsiveness 
approach - honouring Te 
Tiriti o Waitangi 
 

CULTURAL RESPONSIVENESS 

● We have appointed Nicola Marwick 
with the Cultural Leadership unit 

● Nicola, Shari and I have met to look in 
relation to the MOE expectations in the 
development of Cultural Responsiveness 
- please see overview mind map below 
of key developmental thinking. Shari 
and Nicola met with Anna at Murihiku 
Marae on developments. 

● We have applied to be part of the 
Maori Achievement Collaborative 
https://www.mac.ac.nz/ this is a MOE 
supportive initiative based on research. 
The collaborative is an independent 
agency to support professional learning 
and development  for principals and 
schools focused on developing supports 
and outcomes in cultural responsiveness 
and Maori learners. We hope to hear at 
the end of May if we have been 
allocated a place for mentor support. 

 
HERO: Continue HERO set up across the 
school and whanau communication-  
● We have been working on the set up of 

mid year student reporting component 
within HERO 
a.   We have based on our assessment 
and reporting development at this stage 
on our 2023 reporting structure. 
b.   This development will be only for this 
year and a foundation basis within HERO 
- With Government changes  to 
assessment and reporting on the 
horizon. 

Focus is to increase Te Reo use 
across the school, starting with 
everyday practices of 
greeting. 
Strategic focus development 
Cultural Responsiveness to 
support engagement and skills 
development . Click Strong 
Kapa Haka - with awesome 
support from Whaea Shari and 
Whaea Alice- over 80 students 
performing 
As a school we have made a 
commitment for all students to 
experience polyfest this year 
and all classes will be 
attending to support WNS 
Kapa Haka 
Cultural Responsiveness WNS  
Strategic Focus group 
planning .docx 
I applied to be part of the 
Maori Achievement 
Collaborative through the 
MOE - This has been approved 
last week and will allow myself 
and the school to get support 
in the development of 
supporting Maori. Whetu 
McCormmick is the mentor 
and the first course data is 5 
Sept which I will attend as part 
of my study development 
Staff PLD Slides Cultural 
Responsiveness Hui     DRAFT 
Whanau Hui- Term  3 2024   

● A local appropriate Karakia for our school 
to use in the mornings or a simple Karakia 
Kai to be used at Read and Feed time.   

● Build connections and relationships with 
whanau in our kura and our local Murihiku 
Marae. 

● Increased te reo especially over Māori 
Language Week via He kuri 

● Māori language wiki- 3 waiata across 
houses or syndicates. 

 DRAFT Whanau Hui- Term  3 2024   
 
Parent teacher interviews Week 9 - high 
number of interviews booked 
Library project sharing with community  
Whānau hui - great turnout 
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1Kb68uEcUH-
1l4tHa46qUROOd_4vqXzTm/view?usp=drive_link 
 

 

 

Cultural Responsiveness WNS  Strategic 
Focus group planning .docx 

● A local appropriate Karakia for our 
school to use in the mornings or a 
simple Karakia Kai to be used at Read 
and Feed time - now using this at 
assemblies 

● Build connections and relationships 
with whanau in our kura and our local 
Murihiku Marae. 

● Increased te reo especially over Māori 
Language Week via He kuri - new 
focus each nuts and bolts 

● Māori language wiki- 3 waiata across 
houses or syndicates. 

● Hui review with staff - immediate 
implementation highlighted 

 

3b  
Enhance engagement 

Sharing learning every term, positive whanau engagement, support in learning and sporting and cultural events. 

3b1 
Attendance 

Attendance on Hero development, monitored attendance, MOE term ports, refined attendance systems reviewed to regulations.  Set up truancy developments, team 
leaders monitor weekly.  Meeting format set when working with Whanau on irregular attendance/lateness. 
Attendance tracking, build support structures with whanau, councillor, buddy, MOE, Oranga Tamariki, Family Works, Ngati Raukawa. 
80% success in attendance, further development from meeting.  2025 Board working on communication.  Attendance strategy, holiday in term time and alerting 
parents of the impacts to learning when not attending. 

 Next Steps  



 
 

 



 
 
 
 
 

 

Windsor North School  
2024 Curriculum Report 
END of Year Student Achievement  
 
 
Presented December 2024  (Data is a summary of student achievement in relation to Mid Year NZ Curriculum Expectations)   
Report Authors: Debbie Dickson, Jan Forde, Matt Murray, Lisa Christie, Emma Trotter and Monique Dawson (Team leaders) 

 
 
 



MOE Aspirational Goal is for schools to have 80% of their cohorts and schools working at the NZ expectations for each level.  
This report outlines how our students are tracking towards the end of year achievement expectations. 
Data was collected at the end of Term 2 where we had  307 students.  
The data excludes students who commenced in the Term 2 cohort entry - 13 in total, based on time at school.  
 

DISCLAIMER: At the start of 2024 Windsor North School moved to the student management system HERO. Our data is all new in the system and there was no 
transference of past data from our previous system to link to shift and will be monitoring going forward in line with New Zealand Curriculum refresh and assessment 
developments. 

 
 

 

School Assessment Expectations Criteria (Colour Code) 
 
 
 
(PINK) ‘With support towards’ - means they are being 
introduced to the skills and new learning and working 
alongside the teacher or teacher aide at their level of learning 
(YELLOW) '‘Towards’ - means they are developing the skills 
and learning with support towards  the year level expectation. 
(GREEN) ‘Within’ - means they are meeting expectations at 
their year level. They are applying the skills and learning with 
support, and then trying to apply the learning independently 
(TEAL) ‘Beyond’ -  showing strength and transferring  the skills 
learnt into the next level  
(PURPLE) Well beyond  - means they can apply the skills and 
learnings consistently and with independence well above the 
year level expectation.. 
 

 
 

 Board WNS 2023  MID YEAR Achievement Summary Board

 DRAFT MOE Board WNS 2024 MID YEAR Achievement Summary Board

 
 

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1kdhNnV9TNpgkv0zA2UbXgSpUPQY_TmbcZZl1cVD0_aE/edit?usp=sharing
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1w946VcEXqQ5KeYdE7Mtm3IPR5-pe94izVREeIhQS9HE/edit?usp=sharing


WNS High Level Summary 
DEMOGRAPHICS and ATTENDANCE  

Gender: 176 Males and 164 Females 

  
 

Attendance Patterns for 2024 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Cohort Distribution 

 Boys Girls Total 

Yr 0 21 18 39 

Yr 1 21 20 41 

Yr 2 30 22 52 

Yr 3 32 31 63 

Yr 4 17 24 41 

Yr 5 24 22 46 

Yr 6 31 27 58 
 

New Zealand = 183 

Maori = 56  Chinese= 10 Other Asian = 33   

Southeast 
Asian = 9 

Cook Island and 
other Pacifica = 6 

Other European 
= 11  

African = 8 Indian = 10     Latin American = 
8 

Other Pacifica 3 

Who are we - Over the last 3 years a huge increase 
in enrolments of  English as a second Language 
learners.  ESOL (English for speakers of other 
languages) numbers have grown substantially from 9 
students in 2018  (2.7%) to 80 students in 2024 = 26% 
of the school population.              

Breakdown 
YTD = 92.5% present/ Justified Absences 5.8%/ Unjustified 1.8% 
Term 1  3967 Attendance Term 1.pdf
Present-93.1%          Justified- 4.7%         Unjustified- 2.2.% 
Term 2  3967 Attendance Term 2.pdf
Present-93.1%          Justified- 5.7%          Unjustified- 1.2.% 
Term 3 = 91.3% present/ Justified Absences 6.8%/ Unjustified 1.9%

 3967 Attendance Term 3 (1).pdf
Term 4 = 92.6% present/ Justified Absences 5.7%/ Unjustified 1.7% 

 3967 Attendance Term 4.pdf
Over 2024 we have been focusing on increasing our attendance patterns focusing on 
supporting whānau and working closely with support agencies. We have seen our 
patterns fluctuate from 80% of students regularly attending school in Term 1 / 75% in 
Term 2 / 66% in Term 3. The decline of attendance in both Terms 2-3 is based on 
justified absences linked to sickness and unjustified absences due to holidaying in term 
time. Leave in term time will be a communication strategy the Board will focus on in 
2025. 

To Note: In 2024, we have seen an increase in the number of students requiring additional support, particularly at the Year 0-1 level. However, this need is spread across the 
school, with new students enrolling at various levels. The areas where support is most needed include: transition into school, behavior and trauma, neurodiversity, speech, autism, 
and English as a second language. This increase in need equates to 14% learning needs + 26% ESOL= 40% of our student population. 13% of our school population is classified as 
high needs. Where students have an individual learning plan. This has significant impacts on our learning environment, and as a school, we have put in place considerable 
support to assist in learning development. We are working closely with external agencies, including RTLB (Resource Teachers: Learning and Behaviour) and the Ministry of 
Education, to ensure these students receive the help they need.  

 

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1VpwHWVY1xcGil9ZWbYZDH9SOTTFmNlw9/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1qIEwSqlDR9W3Ic4wcAJ4dbTrMbwKbc32/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1oF39tuvcsVUFweBzQqfRiDcE39iU9ihY/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1-V6xPuKCvlk6JHqqiTncUddDJWYjadtB/view?usp=sharing


 
 

2024 END Year Overall Results - 314 student data analysis 
Overall Teacher Judgement Data is based on a triangulated holistic approach in all 3 curriculum areas. It includes:  summative testing, (PAT Testing, Running Records, GLOSS, 
Essential Spelling) formative assessment against expectations and student work books and instructional teaching times. As a school we moderated samples of writing across the 
school and in reading and writing team moderation sessions were formed and then looked across the teams - we were looking for patterns of coherence and consistency. The aim 
is for cohorts and the school to be achieving on average 80% at or above. Please note the overview data includes our Year 0 students and students who have come into school mid 
Term 3 and Term 4 2024, plus students working on individual education plans and requiring learning support.  

Reading 
Overall as a school 86% achieving Within/Above the 
Expected Curriculum Level at end of 2024 
(88% mid year, 2024, 94% 2023, 90% in 2022, 93% in 2021 end of 
year) 
Year 0- 90% working within and Above expected level 
Year 1- 72% working within and Above expected level 
Year 2 - 93% working within and Above expected level 
Year 3- 84% working within and Above expected level 
Year 4 - 86% working within and Above expected level 
Year 5 -98% working within and Above expected level 
Year 6 - 87% working within and Above expected level 

Writing 
Overall as a school 72% achieving Within/Above the 
Expected Curriculum Level at end of 2024 
(71% mid year, 74% in 2023, 76% in 2022, 83% in 2021 end of year) 
Year 0 - 100% working within and Above expected level 
Year 1 - 82% working within and Above expected level  
Year 2 - 63% working within and Above expected level 
Year 3 - 68% working within and Above expected level 
Year 4 - 54% working within and Above expected level 
Year 5 - 74% working within and Above expected level 
Year 6 - 82% working within and Above expected level 

Maths 
Overall as a school 87% achieving Within/Above the 
Expected Curriculum Level at end of 2024 
(87% mid year, 83% 2023,91% in 2022, 91% in 2021 end of year) 

Year 0 - 100% working within and Above expected level 
Year 1 - 82% working within and Above expected level 
Year 2 - 85% working within and Above expected level 
Year 3 - 84% working within and Above expected level 
Year 4 - 83% working within and Above expected level 
Year 5 - 89% working within and Above expected level 
Year 6 - 88% working within and Above expected level 

Reflection on shift and movement from Mid of 2024 to End 
of  year 2024 - High Level data analysis 
Our Year 1-2 data is of greatest interest where over the last 18 
months we are noting students are coming into school with not a 
strong literacy base and ready for learning skills.  
Over the second half of the year we have been linking our 
assessment practice to the new curriculum refresh to gain 
understanding on the new benchmarks, in particular reading and 
writing. This is a refining process around phonics development 
and the need for support programmes when students come into 
school.Key work on oral language/ phonics/ ready for learning 
skills has been required before we connect with reading 
development. We will be interested to see our data development 
with the introduction of structured literacy in 2025 and the new 
developments within assessment practices. Within our cohorts 
learning behaviour and English as a second language is also an 
area of need. Year 6 students have maintained a positive shift 
and continued working at expectations over the last 6 months. 
Our Year 5 students have moved positively forward with a shift of 
5% working at or above. Year 4 students have maintained and 
made a 2% shift within expectation levels.  Year 3 students 
maintained working within expectation and made a 1 level shift - 
focusing on comprehension. 

Reflection on shift and movement from Mid of 2024 to end 
year 2024 - High Level data analysis 
Overall we have maintained writing development across the 
school, with focus on spelling development and phonics in the Yr 
0-3 area. Our Year 2 cohort has a high level of English Language 
learners with focus on sounds and language development.  
Our Year 65 and 6 students have maintained skill development 
and have made 1-2 sub level shifts within their learning 
expectation. Development of quick writes and focusing on 
forming strong sentence structures as part of Structured Literacy 
Approach is beginning to make small positive shifts. This will be a 
focus of 2025 - working on the Writing Revolution process. 
Our Year 4 students have had an accelerated programme 
focusing on phonics/graphemes, sounds and dictated sentences, 
this has supported the stronger foundations of writing and 
maintaining working towards expectations with shifts within the 
level. The Year 1 data overall is accurate on the basis of the 
curriculum levelling as there is no other level than beginning Level 
1  that they can be marked mid year. The team has broken down 
the data and noted  14 students - 37% needing phonics/spelling 
support - 6 in ELS group, 6 in SL grp, 2 behaviour support. So data 
should be sitting  
So the real percentage for Year 1 = 63% 

Reflection on shift and movement from End of 2023 to mid 
year 2024- High Level data analysis 
On average 90% of students across all year group cohorts have 
made positive shifts within expectations of 1-2 sub levels over 6 
months. Staff have been working with the new curriculum 
expectations and forming foundation assessments on the new 
expectations. The end of phase 1 it is noted there is a big shift 
needed for our Year 3-4 students moving from 100-1000’s.  
The development and engagement in mathematics with focus 
on problem solving, working collaboratively and using more 
materials to show thinking has maintained students' connection 
and understanding within maths especially for our female 
students. This came through in the NEMP (National Education 
Monitoring Project)  Year 3 and Year 6 data we have received. 
A strength is that we have made a 4 % positive shift overall. 
A stronger language base and assessment of All Mathematics 
and Statistics this year has been a positive in developing depth in 
our programme. Staff understand the higher expectations set with 
an aligned framework Link to Framework. During 2025, we will 
continue to review and align with the new curriculum refresh 
expectations and focus on the introduction of structured maths - 
using the resource Maths No Problem 

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1LnGDS55FmcHIJGzoZhDpdrUslNITmYrw-7JysGHPNQY/edit


 
 

MATHEMATICS 2024 Overall End of Year Achievement Data- Detailed Breakdown  
The below table has clean data showing the overview mid to end of year. We have taken out our Year 0 
students and 16 students who joined Windsor North School from mid Term 3 to the end of Term 4 2024. 
Total is 277 students. 

 
 
 
 
 

LEVEL 4 END            

  MIDDLE            

  BEGINNING           23-39.66% 

LEVEL 3 END         9-20%  28-48.28% 

  MIDDLE        5 -12.20%  4-6.90% 

  BEGINNING        31-68.89%  

LEVEL 2 END     17-27.87%  29 -70.70%   

  MIDDLE   10-19.61%    5-11.11% 1-1.78% 

  BEGINNING 2 - 6.06%  34-55.74% 2-5%     

LEVEL 1 END 3-9.09% 33- 64.71% 6-10.90%      

  MIDDLE 26-68.42% 4-7.84% 4-7.27%      

  BEGINNING  4-7.84%        

  Towards 4 -12.12%          

  With Support    1-1.64% 1-2.70%     

Total Cohort Numbers 33 51 55 37 45 56 

 277 STUDENTS YEAR 1 YEAR 2 YEAR 3 YEAR 4 YEAR 5 YEAR 6 

 



Maths and Statistics 
Overall School Distribution 

Number of 
Students Across 

the School School % 

  With Support 8 2.57% 

  Towards 36 11.46% 

 21 students moved from 
working towards to 
meeting end of year 
expectations  

End of Year 
Expectations 198 63.05% 

Overall Analysis - The data above includes Yr 0/ students with needs and new students arriving 
over mid Term 3 and Term 4 

89% males are working at or above expected levels. 
84% females are working at or above expected levels  
There has been a positive shift within our male students by 2% and our female cohort has 
maintained a 2% increase from mid to end of year. 

 
Beyond 

Expectations 71 22.61% 

  Well Beyond 1 .318% 

  
  314 100% 

 
 



Effort Patterns in 
Relation to 
Achievement 

 
 
 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        

 

Needs Support 14- 4.12% 80% of our students are applying consistent effort and beyond. Engagement has 
increased from Mid 2024 to end of year by 11%  especially in girls and students 
who have learning needs and English Second Language learners. Problem solving 
broader approach- working in collaborative groups - applying maths to situations 
has been a big development. Basic Facts cards used differently and students 
having agency over them- not just seen as a test. 

Beginning to Apply 27-7.9% 

Consistent Independence 204-60% 

Beyond Expectation 68-20% 
 



Other Data info 
(Findings/ Trends) 
Across the School 

 
Overall 95% 210 out of 220 of the students that started at WNS are working at and above year expectations. 
This has been a 3% shift with students moving up at least 2 sub levels within 6 months of learning.  

 
In Seeing Shift Development in GLOSS results from Mid to End of Year is really pleasing across the school 



 
Addition and Subtraction: Within this range 4 students across the school moved down a sublevel from mid to end of year data. 3 students 
were new to the school - In our younger years we have seen a good consolidation base and strong development in applying and using 
addition and subtraction practices. It was identified mid year  that there was a large number of students (25) that had a Low number 
knowledge which is impacting on their ability to solve simple addition and subtraction problems. A targeted approach was made and saw 18 
students make an accelerated shift and are near or at. Changes in expectations in number knowledge in the new curriculum (100 - 1000)  
have made it harder for those children who were already struggling with the number knowledge. 
 
With the new implementation of problem solving and application and structured mathematical development in 2025 we hope to see a 
greater movement of shifts within the Year 2-3 area of our school.  In our senior area of the school we have seen a positive movement of 
2-3 sublevel shifts particularly in the Year 4-5 areas of the school. This has contributed to students being able to problem solve more and 
have a solid base of basic facts based on our new basic facts programme we implemented in 2024. More explicit development of 
strategies has seen shift and problem solving and collaborative approach has seen student engagement rise in this area. 
 
 

 
 
 
 



Proportions and Ratios is an area 
of continued development 
within our programme design. In 
2023 we had noted that this was 
often at the end of a cycle 
within a term and this year we 
have used the NZ maths 
programme design and 
captured more time in this area 
of mathematics. It is pleasing to 
see that we are making positive 
shifts in this area in particular 
Year 4-6 with 3 sublevel shifts 
being made by 30% of this 
cohort. Consolidation and 

application of skills has also been formed with shifts within a sublevel being made. The Year 2-3 area of the school the students are 
needing greater support in this area. 

 



 
 

Development of Multiplication and Division across the Year 4-6 area of the school has shown a positive shift on 1-2 sublevels from Mid to 
end of year. With only 3 students making a decline in their level across the school.  In the Year 0-3 area this is an introduction focus and 
we need to build further foundation skills over phase 1 of the new mathematics programme. Mathematics focus on number knowledge 
shows a strong phase 
Analysis of Year 3 and Year 6 students who took part in NEMP testing and development during Term 2 and Term 3 
2024.  Overall Results in relation to NZ National Norms 
 
  Year 6                                  Year 3 
                                                                      
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 



 

Maori, Pasifika and Ethnicity 
Our Maori students working very well and 85% are working at or above 
 

Our Pasifika students 78% are working at or above 
 

Our Asian students 83% are working at or above  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
90% of Pākehā/ European students are working within and 
above expectations.  
 
Our MELLA (Middle Eastern, Latin American and African) 
students 69% are working within and beyond expectations. 31% 
have made shifts within their English understanding within 
mathematics - they have a support programme to assist in 
meaning and development of  number knowledge. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



Next Steps: 
Mathematics and Statistics  is an area of development within the school, where we are working on aligning to NZ Curriculum Refresh. Development of all strands within our 
data. 83% of our students are working At or Above Expectation  

 Phase 1 (Years 0-3) Phase 2 (Years 4-6) 

Strengths and 
Findings   
 
Why do we think this?  
What shifts have 
happened? 

Students coming in with low number knowledge to 10 and mathematical 
language and understanding of maths within their environment. 
Application of mathematics through Tahi - hands on time- explicit use of 
mathematical language and exploration has assisted in connection with 
their environment and that maths is all around. 
 
Better balance of coverage is now seen consistently across this phase. 
Still to grow in measurement and geometry 

Basic Facts development and number knowledge has made positive 
shifts and retaining and applying the knowledge has been evident 
through using the problem solving approach. 
Engagement in maths has increased 
Findings  
Maths - 5 Students low in number knowledge, their strategy higher than 
their number knowledge Findings  
Y4 -15% under expectations. (3/6 ESOL, ⅙ behaviour/trauma, 2 high 
absence) 
Y5 9% under expectations.(2/4,medical/developmental). 
Application of Proportions and Ratios to continue and the further 
development of the other mathematical strands and use of 
mathematical language 
 
Better balance of coverage is now been seen consistently across the 
school  

●​ Gender 
●​ Ethnicity 
●​ Learning 

Needs 
Trends and patterns - 
impacts 
Is there any lag data 
- students not 
achieving well - 
emerging theories  

Year 3 area development of number knowledge to the 1000’s has grown 
but an area of continued development 
Focus Development Number Identify and number knowledge  

●​ 1-100 
●​ 100-1000 
●​ Building number knowledge strategies to consolidate them   

Use of language and explaining and showing thinking using materials 
to continue 
Small accelerated groups to develop confidence in number 
knowledge  

●​ Build accelerated programmes applying the ALIM concept 
within mathematics for our ESOL / MELLA students 

●​ Working on Number knowledge and applying his in a 
problem solving approach 
 
 

What needs to happen 
next? 

●​ Introduction of the Maths No Problem - structured mathematics 
approach and forming  

●​ Stronger explicit mathematical teaching and language use - 
forming consistencies within phase 1 and across the school 

●​ Development of new assessment practices -AsTTle in line with 
the new curriculum  

●​ sharing data with students and forming goals that focus on next 
steps 

●​ Introduction of the Maths No Problem - structured mathematics 
approach and forming coherence of the programme 

●​ Use data points to monitor more the strand development within 
our programme - linking AsTTle and new curriculum with HERO  
positing and student assessment and monitoring/ agency 

 
 

 
 



READING 2024 Overall End of Year Achievement Data- Detailed Breakdown  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The below table has clean data showing the overview mid to end of year. We have taken out our Year 0 students and 16 students who joined Windsor North School from 
mid Term 3 to the end of Term 4 2024. Total is 278 students. 

 

LEVEL 4 
  
  

END           3- 5.37% 

MIDDLE            

BEGINNING           33-59% 

LEVEL 3 
  
  

END         19-41.30%  14-25% 

MIDDLE        5 -12.20%   

BEGINNING        26-56.52% 3-5.37% 

LEVEL 2 
  
  

END     12-21.21%  29 -70.70%   

MIDDLE 4 -12,12%  16-31.37%     3-5.37% 

BEGINNING   37-60.07% 2-5%     

LEVEL 1 
  
  
  
  

END 10 - 30,30% 31- 60.78%       

MIDDLE 8-24.24%  3-5.37%      

BEGINNING  2-3.92  4-7.14%       

Towards 4-12.12% 2-3.92%         

With Support 7 -21.21%   1-2.70%     

Total Cohort Numbers 33 51 56  37  45 56  

 277 STUDENTS YEAR 1 YEAR 2 YEAR 3 YEAR 4 YEAR 5 YEAR 6 



 
 

Reading  
Overall School Distribution 

Number of 
Students Across 

the School School % 

  With Support 17 6.13% 

  Towards 13 14.69% 

 28 students moved from 
working towards to 
meeting end of year 
expectations or beyond 

End of Year 
Expectations 145 52.34% 

Overall Analysis - The data above includes Yr 0/ students with needs and new students arriving 
over mid Term 3 and Term 4 

80% males are working at or above expected levels. 
92% females are working at or above expected levels  
There has been a positive shift within our male students by 5% and our female cohort has 
maintained a 4% increase from mid to end of year. 

 
Beyond 

Expectations 95 34.29% 

  Well Beyond 7 .318% 

  
  277 100% 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Effort Patterns in 
Relation to 
Achievement 

 

 
 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        

Needs Support 10- 2.94% 78.53% of our students are applying consistent effort and beyond. There has been a 
shift of 4% of students making shifts in their effort development. This is attributed to 
looking at a further range of texts especially in the seniors and for our male students. 
Using texts in their first language for our English Second Language (ESOL) learners 
and the support in developing English comprehension and talking through texts for 
our ESOL learners has really made a positive shift in engagement and willingness to 
read and apply reading to their learning. 

Beginning to Apply 31-9.12% 

Consistent Independence 185-54.41% 

Beyond Expectation 82-24.12% 

 

 
 



Other Data info 
(Findings/ Trends) 
Across the School 

 
Overall 96% 194 out of 220 of the students that started at WNS are working at and above year expectations. 
This has maintained growth at a normal rate of shift. Our students coming in Yr1-0 have made an accelerated shift for the foundation 
level based on phonics accelerated programme and 1-1 support.  
This is shown in the reading level bar graph below on the left. From mid year to end of year our colour wheel readers in the junior area of 
the school have made above accelerated shifts and are moving positively through the reading levels in decoding texts. Comprehension 
is an area of development. 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 

BETA STRUCTURED LITERACY PHONICS ASSESSMENT 
Our Yr 1-2 students took part in the MOE Term 4 phonic assessment trail- our baseline data is as follows: 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 
The information has allowed us to get an insight into structured literacy and phonics development and a good initial starting point for 2025 
implementation. 
 



 
Probe Data and Student Reading Progress 
Probe data is used as a formative assessment to track and support students' progress in reading, with a specific focus on retelling, 
reasoning, comprehension, and language. The graph above illustrates the progress of students at the Year 4-5-6 levels. 
This data helps us assess whether we are deepening students’ comprehension skills, particularly in relation to our goal of fostering growth in 
senior students. The key findings show that, while there are noticeable shifts in students’ progress throughout the year, the most significant 
changes occur within their current reading levels. This highlights the need for further development of higher-order reading skills, such as 
inferencing and deeper understanding. 
Our students are able to decode words based on language comprehension. However, we’ve observed that more explicit instruction in 
these areas led to noticeable improvements, particularly in Term 4. Moving forward, we will continue to build on this progress by integrating 
the explicit reading objectives from the new English curriculum and structured literacy program. 
 

 
 

 
 



Maori, Pasifika and Ethnicity 
Our Maori students working very well and 88% are working at or above 
Our Pasifika students 67% are working at or above 
Our Asian students 84% are working at or above  
88% of Pākehā/ European students are working within and above expectations.  
Our MELLA (Middle Eastern, Latin American and African) students 68% are working within and beyond expectations. 20% have made shifts within their English 
understanding.  

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Next Steps: 
Reading development has been a strength within the school where we have consistently over time continued and maintained 85%+ students working at and above yearl 
level expectation.   

 Phase 1 (Years 0-3) Phase 2 (Years 4-6) 

Strengths and 
Findings   
 
Why do we think this?  
What shifts have 
happened? 

We are noting a change in our baseline data and that it is declining in:  
●​ phoneme and grapheme awareness of our New Entrants 

coming in. 
●​ Oral Language development is also low with many students 

requiring support in this area. 
●​ Book awareness and concepts of print is low 

Strengths in students want to engage in reading and love the 
achievement of their reading logs and sharing and learning through text. 
 
With the new curriculum refresh and the introduction of structured 
literacy will support our learners development and allow more in depth 
development in phonics and literacy skills 
We understand we may see a dip while we re-calibrate our teaching and 
data to structured literacy. 
 
Support was provided to 15 students Tier 3 (Reading recovery Students)  
Tier 2 support- The small group phonics and reading fluency groups in 
Year 2-3 for Terms 2-3 really supported decoding and reading mileage - 
students being able to discuss what they have read more confidently.  

Development of genre growth and engaging in short reads has certainly 
supported our ESOL and reluctant readers. 

●​ Accelerated phonics literacy groups  really assisted our older 
learners and this helped not only their reading but writing 
development 

●​ RTLIt support for 10 weeks for 6 readers really connected their 
engagement and they saw themselves as readers and their 
application in class really showed positive growth. 

 
 
 
Better balance of coverage is now been seen consistently across the 
school  

What needs to happen 
next? 

●​ Introduction of the structured literacy  approach based on The 
Code through PLD providers Literacy Connections 

●​ Stronger explicit development in reading/ words and sounds 
●​ Using more choral reading and practice of skills 
●​ Using key guides on the New English framework 

●​ Development of new assessment practices -AsTTle in line with 
the new curriculum  

●​ sharing data with students and forming goals that focus on next 
steps 

●​ Introduction of the structured literacy  approach based on The 
Code through PLD providers Literacy Connections 

●​ Use data points to monitor more the strand development within 
our programme - linking AsTTle and new curriculum with HERO  
positing and student assessment and monitoring/ agency 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



WRITING 2024 Overall End of Year Achievement Data- Detailed Breakdown  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The below table has clean data showing the overview mid to end of year. We have taken out our Year 0 students and 16 students who joined Windsor North School from 
mid Term 3 to the end of Term 4 2024. Total is 278 students. 

 

LEVEL 4 
  
  

END           1- 1.72% 

MIDDLE            

BEGINNING           14-24.13% 

LEVEL 3 
  
  

END         2-4.44%  32-55.17% 

MIDDLE       2 -5.40%   

BEGINNING        31-68.88% 4-6.89% 

LEVEL 2 
  
  

END     4-7.14%  20 -54.05%   

MIDDLE  5-9.80%    10- 22.22% 5-8.62% 

BEGINNING   32-57.14% 11-29.72%     

LEVEL 1 
  
  
  
  

END 5 - 15.15% 27-  52.94%   2- 4.44%   

MIDDLE 21-63.63%  14-25% 
4-10.81%  

     

BEGINNING  19-37.25% 6-10.71%      

Towards 7-21.21%          

With Support         

Total Cohort Numbers 33 51 56  37  45 56  

 277 STUDENTS YEAR 1 YEAR 2 YEAR 3 YEAR 4 YEAR 5 YEAR 6 



 
 

Writing  
Overall School Distribution 

Number of 
Students Across 

the School School % 

  With Support 17 6.13% 

  Towards 65 23.46% 

Movement over 40%  in 
writing has plateaued and 
this is due to spelling / 
surface needs needed 
further support- it is not 
instant recall of spelling 
when it is being applied - 
students have moved 
within levels but not 
progressed up a level  

End of Year 
Expectations 163 58.84% 

Overall Analysis - The data above includes Yr 0/ students with needs and new 
students arriving over mid Term 3 and Term 4 

74.82% males are working at or above expected levels. 
79.47% females are working at or above expected levels  
There has been a positive shift within our male students by 7%  movement into 
working within expectation and our female cohort has maintained shift but 
there has been a decrease of 3% working within expectation. 

 
Beyond 

Expectations 32 11.55% 

  Well Beyond 1 .361% 

  
  277 100% 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Effort Patterns in 
Relation to 
Achievement 

 

 
 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        

Needs Support 18-5.29% 75/29% of our students are applying consistent effort and beyond. There has been a 
shift of 2% of students making shifts in their effort development.  
Effort shift has seen an increase of 16% in consistent effort of 3% in beginning to 
apply effort in particular with boys. 70% of our students have maintained their effort 
application within their writing development in consistent and beyond expectation 

Beginning to Apply 40-11.76% 

Consistent Independence 184-54.12% 

Beyond Expectation 71-20.88% 
 

 
 



Other Data info 
(Findings/ Trends) 
Across the School 
 
 
SHIFT DATA  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Overall 77% 168 out of 219 of the students that started at WNS are working at and above year expectations. 
There has been a 7% drop in our writing shift data from Mid to End of year 
This is based on more rigorous benchmarking and moderation development in writing following mid year data collection. Consistency in 
development of making overall teacher judgements in surface features and deeper features is becoming more consistent with focus 
check points. 2025 will see a complete review again with e-asTTLE check points and structured writing. 



 
 
 
 
Progress NZ Study 

The above graphs do show students starting at Windsor North School are tracking in a positive shift rate and making good progress within 
the curriculum levels.  
 
Curriculum Insights NZ Testing and Progress Moderation Study 
In 2024 our Year 3 and Year 6 students were part of the Curriculum Insights Testing for Writing 
Year 3 WNS Data  

The writing assessments were scored using the e-asTTle rubric. In the reports, we provide the average rubric scores for each element, as well as an overall average 
score. These scores are presented for your school and for all schools in the national sample that responded to the same prompt. 
Please note that the Curriculum Insights writing assessment differs from e-asTTle, as it was conducted online and used prompts specifically designed for national 
monitoring. 

Overall our Year 3 students are working above the other schools that 
were part of the study. Our schools' average was higher in all aspects of 
writing. We did have 1.9% of our students working in the lower quartile 
than other schools but we were between 1.90-2% above in the medial 
and upper quartiles. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
Our Year 6 Data 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
The data for our Year 6 cohort shows in most areas of the writing curriculum 
our Year 6 students were performing above the average score. 
The area that we need to review and develop further in our programme 
design in Structure and Language. 
In our distribution of students we did have a 1.5% greater portion of 
students working in the lower quartile and were within .5 to .08 in median 
and upper quartile areas of the Year 6 distribution.  
 
 
 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 



Maori, Pasifika and Ethnicity 
Our Maori students working very well and 80.39% are working at or above 
Our Pasifika students 54.55% are working at or above 
Our Asian students 70.17% are working at or above  
72.63% of Pākehā/ European students are working within and above expectations.  
Our MELLA (Middle Eastern, Latin American and African) students 46.67% are working within and beyond expectations. 15% have made shifts within their English understanding.  

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Next Steps: 
Writing development has been a strength within the school where we have consistently over time continued and maintained 85%+ students working at and above yearl 
level expectation.   

 Phase 1 (Years 0-3) Phase 2 (Years 4-6) 

Strengths and 
Findings   
 
Why do we think this?  
What shifts have 
happened? 

We are noting a change in our baseline data and that it is declining in:  
●​ Oral Language development is also low with many students 

requiring support in this area and students not being able to talk 
about and share their experiences with confidence which is 
impacting on their content development on what to write about 

●​ Sound development is phonemes is requiring a lot more work 
and partnership with home practice to secure and support 
writing of sounds 

●​ Handwriting skills are needing a great focus - most children 
coming in are requiring pencil grip correction and how to sit 
properly for writing. Fine motor skills in TAHI / ICE key 
competency programme is required. 

●​ Engagement and reluctance to start writing with support  
●​ The implementation of phonics daily programme for the first 20 

minutes of the day has really assisted with the shift in 
development 

●​ Using text and shared book has really assisted with 
engagement to develop ideas and sentences 

 

 
●​ Development of quick writes and more visuals and story 

starters have assisted reluctant writers  
●​ Phonics booster groups have support writers/ reader especially 

in the Year 4 area 
●​ Focus development and review of spelling programme - will 

link into focus for 2025 - of transference and use of words learnt 
into their writing 

●​ Recrafting making punchy sentences and editing is an area of 
focus. 

●​ Structure and Language development in our programme 
design  

 
 
 
Better balance of coverage is now been seen consistently across the 
school  

What needs to happen 
next? 

●​ Introduction of the structured literacy  approach based on The Writing Revolution  
●​ Stronger explicit development in spelling using the Code Liz Kane and a sequence in the development of sounds and words 

 
●​ Using key guides on the New English framework 
●​ Use data points to monitor more the strand development within our programme - linking AsTTle and new curriculum with HERO  positing 

and student assessment and monitoring/ agency 
●​  

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 



 

 

Windsor North School 
 Learning for Living - Ako Aronga  

 Striving to be our best! 
 

How do we as a school give effect to Tiriti o Waitangi? 
Strategic  
Focus Goal 

Our WHY?  
Building Positive Partnerships with Whanau so we can all Strive to be our very best. 

 
Positive Partnerships include: 
●​ Continue to develop effective communication systems including the introduction of 

HERO in 2024 
●​ Whanau being involved in the school - sharing our learning sessions, sporting and 

cultural 
●​ Developing effective processes for collecting whanau voice - Hui’s, surveys, sharing 

sessions 
●​ Connecting with local iwi 
●​ Working collaboratively with schools in the North Invercargill area and local community 

organisations 
●​ Supporting and growing our ākonga 
●​ Supporting and growing our kaiako and tumuaki 
 



 
 

Policies and 
Practices 

Over 2024 we have been working on the development of weaving the 4 principles of the 
Tiriti o Waitangi into the fabric and STRIVE development of our school  

Te Tiriti o Waitangi 
Principles 
Together, these principles aim 
to support a balanced and 
respectful relationship between 
Māori and the Crown, 
grounded in the values of 
justice, fairness, and respect for 
Māori autonomy and cultural 
identity. 

 
Developing the skills within our school so each student can 
STRIVE to be their best 

Partnership: 
To work together in good 
faith, respecting each 
other’s rights and 
interests. 

 

Learning effective communication 
skills that enable them to: 
●​ Express their needs and wants  
●​ Actively listen to others  
●​ Attitudes and values - have a 

positive, responsible attitude on 
the part of students to: 
●​ Their own well-being; 
●​ Show respect, care, and have 

concern for other people and 
the environment 

●​ Have a sense of social justice. 

Protection: 
The Crown has a duty to 
protect Māori people, 
culture, language, and 
taonga (treasures). This 
includes safeguarding 
Māori rights, ensuring their 
well-being, and preserving 
their cultural heritage.  

 

It is all our responsibility to:  
●​ Develop and grow learners in the 

local stories of Murihiku 
●​ Grow and use Te Reo and 

languages of our akonga  
●​ Grow and use tikanga maori rituals 

and traditions within the school - 
karakia, waiata, haka, welcome, 
mihi etc 



Participation: 
Participate in 
decision-making 
processes that affect 
them, particularly in 
matters related to land, 
resources, and cultural 
practices. 

 

Gaining confidence in their abilities to 
make: 

●​ Informed decisions that support 
their health, wellbeing and 
physical activities. 

Protection: 
Includes safeguarding 
Māori rights, ensuring their 
well-being, and 
preserving their cultural 
heritage.  

 

Hauora– a Māori philosophy of 
well-being that includes the dimensions 
taha wairua, taha hinengaro, taha 
tinana, and taha whānau, each one 
influencing and supporting the others. 
This is developed through MITEY and 
the MANA model 

 STRIVE & MITEY learning dis…
We want all members of our Kura to be 
caring individuals who:  

●​ demonstrates empathy and 
compassion towards others 

●​ are connected 
●​ are proud of their culture 

Equity 
This principle 
acknowledges that 
everyone has a 
responsibility to address 
past wrongs, in order to 
restore justice and 
fairness. 

 

The socio-ecological perspective – a 
way of viewing and understanding the 
interrelationships that exist between 
the individual, others, and society. 

●​ Valuing a diverse range of 
perspectives  

●​ Encouraging creative problem 
solving and innovative thinking. 

Collaboration 

 

Connecting by: 
●​ Collaborative learning  
●​ Community projects 
●​ Learning alongside each other 
●​ Developing a learner agency 
●​ Building whole community 

development 

 

Professional 
Learning 

Board - The board attended the NZSTA (online or face to face) Treaty Workshops.   
As a staff we have worked together collectively on our annual goals 

  Cultural Responsiveness WNS  Strategic Focus group planning .docx
Our goal is to increase visibility of Te Reo and Tikanga Maori in our school. This is being used 
more frequently across classrooms with Te Reo Maori week being a success. The new 
Cultural Leadership role has been so valuable working to support staff and students with 
new phrases and practising songs. We have found that this has provided an opportunity for 
students to step into leadership roles outside of their usual comfort zone, and there is less 
apprehension across the school. 
 
 

https://docs.google.com/presentation/d/1abs_W9hSHjISZL5-P9AVT8JJxjOoYRzjHssuIPWt9N4/edit?usp=sharing
https://docs.google.com/document/d/13O2SXkcz7i8X2vJ4fcg3WKWEnjWKT8k1/edit?usp=sharing&ouid=110096433375796998213&rtpof=true&sd=true


Learning/ 
Local 
Curriculum 
and linking to 
the NELPS  
(national 
educational learning 
priorities) 

 DRAFT - Working in Progress Windsor North School NZ Histories / Social Science Framew…
We held a Whanau Hui - feedback goals will assist in  DRAFT Whanau Hui- Term  3 2024  
the 2025 cultural responsiveness development within our school. 

 Whānau Hui 2024 Community Feedback.pdf
 

Te reo Māori 
and tikanga 
Māori 

We have been fortunate to have 2 wonderful Kapa Haka teachers (members of our WNS 
Whanau) to support our students. With this they have brought a lot of knowledge and 
through kapa haka have grown skills in Te Reo development/ tikanga Maori. This year we 
performed at the Murihiku Polyfest with over 70 akonga performing. 

Iwi 
Connection 

Invercargill Principals and Board Chairs are working together with our local iwi Murihuki. This 
will be an ongoing development over 2024-2025 in forming local stories to link to NZ History 
and development of growing cultural responsiveness. In November was the Launch of Te 
Pōhā Mātauraka. 

Next Steps Whanau Connection 
Development process of our Whanau Hui’s connecting community - whanau/ students and 
WNS staff and board working together. 

Welcome Invite to 
our Hui 

Meeting Mihi Whakatau - Kapa Haka welcome parents and 
whanau in  

Welcome and 
Blessing 

Matt, Debbie and Lisa 
Have slides and photos of students making the connections with our 
strategic plan 

 Waitea kapa haka 

Blessing of Kia Kia (Potluck Sharing) or BBQ 

Strategic 
Development and 
Our story - Shared by 
Debbie / Board 
Member 

 

Gathering Reflective 
Voice Whanau/ 
Students/ around Kapa 
Development and our 

 Windsor North School NZ Histories / Social Science Framework

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1iiklipSW0NJ0Y_AtF35J9HFZTWbPlRKcOMdz-Kok6pQ/edit?usp=sharing
https://docs.google.com/presentation/d/1zL8DPEzmzKpxF1WsCxRKYwx_0eg-93R382H1xpo6hYc/edit?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1jfkfWYDiJjjJu21i76NvLiu9W6bsJbV6/view?usp=sharing
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1iiklipSW0NJ0Y_AtF35J9HFZTWbPlRKcOMdz-Kok6pQ/edit?usp=sharing


goal 

 
Form 3 questions - form in houses 
 

1 Aspirations for Kapa Haka - Dreams and Wishes 

2 Aspirations for the school in developing cultural 
partnerships ideas 

3 Further Considerations  

Sharing 

Conclusion Waitea/ Karakia 
 
 

 



 

Windsor North School   
Compliance with Education and Training Act 2020 requirements to be a good employer for the 
year ending 31 December 2024. 

The following questions address key aspects of compliance with a good employer policy:  
Below is the Good Employer Policy/ Procedure 

GOOD EMPLOYER 
 

OVERVIEW 
To ensure that Windsor North School is a good employer, the school follows the terms set out in 
Section 77A of the State Sector Act 1988. 
PROCEDURE 

1.​ The Board will take all reasonable steps to ensure that good and safe working 
conditions exist by maintaining a Hazard Management Register and following the 
appropriate Employment Agreements. 

2.​ The Board will respond to all reasonable and achievable requests made by 
employees. 

3.​ The Board recognizes the needs of ethnic and minority groups, and persons with 
disabilities and will respond to all reasonable and achievable requests made by 
employees. 

4.​ Each year the Board will make budget provision to support training and 
development programmes intended to enhance the abilities of individual 
employees with the expectation that funds used in this way will be reflected in 
enhanced employee performance in aspects of their work. 

5.​ The Board will take all other reasonable steps to ensure that it is a good and fair 
employer by responding to issues and concerns raised by employees. 

6.​ The Board will demonstrate a commitment to the Treaty of Waitangi. 
7.​ The Board has in place the following to ensure good and safe working conditions 

and fair and proper treatment of all employees.:  
●​ Personnel Policy 
●​ Equal Opportunities Policy 
●​ EEO Policy 



Reporting on the principles of being a Good Employer 

How have you met your 
obligations to provide good 
and safe working conditions? 

As a school we are very supportive to our staff, and value their wellbeing, 
and social and emotional care. 

○​ This has been displayed by responding positively to leave requests 
from staff to support families and themselves with events, special 
requests and in ensuring we seek cover to support them while away 

○​ We have maintained CRT release requirements and where we can 
have provided additional release.. 

○​ We value professional learning and over 2024 we allowed time for 
teams to embed mathematics development, and working in 
collaborative teams to unpack further and look at programme 
enhancement to support our learners across the school  in: 

■​ Cultural Responsiveness 
■​ PB4L, Mitey and STRIVE 
■​ Playbase - Key Competency development 

From Term 4 we commenced the training in structured literacy 
development as a whole school. This will continue over 2025-2026. 

 
○​ The school focuses on support systems within classes and funds 

learning assistants to work alongside teaching staff to support 
learners with needs in learning and behaviour. Learning assistants 
are supported with training and weekly meeting support. 

○​ Team Leaders are provided with an additional full days release to 
support team development 

○​ Leadership members attended respective professional development 
courses in their key roles included SENCO support, PB4L and Mitey 
development, Technology, and Sports. 

○​ Debbie D our Principal took sabbatical leave during Term 3/4  and 
Jan F acted as Principal and Matt M as Deputy Principal. Additional 
release and support was put in place over this time. 

○​ We have engaged in Mitey and have a Wellbeing staff committee 
to support and review wellbeing development for staff within our 
school.  Over 2023 we formed collectively as a staff the following 
staff wellbeing policy Staff Mental Health and Wellbeing Policy 
REVIEWED Jun 23 

What is in your equal 
employment opportunities 
programme?  

How have you been fulfilling 
this programme? 

Everything we do reflects equal opportunities and development- we work 
hard to be culturally inclusive and supportive. 

We seek feedback on school developments and share information with 
staff around school developments and thinking. 

We ask each member of staff to provide feedback at the end of Term 3 on 
where they would like to grow, develop and work in based on our school 
allocations for the following year. 

We have an emphasis on streamlining systems and team work and growing 
people and leadership. 

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1pdP5rCvB6bk56oC_pcczyqToetgZY706SDI3O80zkCg/edit?usp=sharing
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1pdP5rCvB6bk56oC_pcczyqToetgZY706SDI3O80zkCg/edit?usp=sharing


How do you practise impartial 
selection of suitably qualified 
persons for appointment? 

D3.1 Appointment Policy REVIEWED Mar19 

Our appointment process is transparent internally and externally. Please 
see the appointment policy we follow. 

How are you recognising, 

−​ The aims and aspirations 
of Maori,  

−​ The employment 
requirements of Maori, 
and  

−​ Greater involvement of 
Maori in the Education 
service? 

This is an area of continued development for our school and board. Over 
2024 we have gained support and attended professional workshop 
sessions, we are working alongside whanau and tamaraki in enhancing our 
school further. 

At the beginning of Term 3 we entered into Maori Achievement 
Collaborative and also worked with local iwi. IN 2025 our aim mid year is to 
register in the new learning programme with Murihiku Maori. 

We respect Te Tiriti of Waitangi and have been developing tikanga 
principles in all we do. Commencing with a karakia or whakatauki, 
introductions with a mihi, welcoming staff and students to the school with a 
mihi whakatauki. 

Under our Strategic Focus - Collaborative Connections - this area is one 
that we would like to continue to learn and develop within our school. 

How have you enhanced the 
abilities of individual 
employees? 

We value staff feedback and reflection and through each staff member's 
professional growth cycle, they  set individual goals and areas they would 
like to grow are explored within the year. This can include study, online 
courses, opportunities to visit other schools, develop a new area, lead an 
area etc. A member of the  leadership team works with each member to 
form a plan ahead.  

How are you recognising the 
employment requirements of 
women? 

Our school aspires to provide equal opportunity for all. We really value all 
our staff and what they bring to our school. We aspire to develop an 
environment emotionally, socially and environmentally that respects all our 
workers within our school. Our staff is female heavy, and we are mindful of 
the importance to ensure our male staff feel valued and have their 
requirements met. 

How are you recognising the 
employment requirements of 
persons with disabilities? 

We support staff who have disabilities or health needs by ensuring they can 
meet their medical appointments. Work with each member so we 
understand and recognise the needs and if required look to adapt 
environments and operational expectations i.e. duty. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1L3Wkxyu4zE14pQOd0-jKomHkt__x6Bhpgi3DWf4o9w0/edit?usp=sharing


Good employer policies should include provisions for an Equal Employment Opportunities (EEO) 
programme/policy . The Ministry of Education monitors these policies: 

Reporting on Equal Employment Opportunities (EEO) Programme/Policy YES NO 

Do you operate an EEO programme/policy? This policy is on the school Policy and 
Procedures Internal Sites  

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITIES 

OVERVIEW 
Windsor North School, in accordance with the requirements under the State Sector Amendment Act 
1989, supports the development and implementation of an Equal Employment Opportunities 
programme. 

1.​ An EEO officer (who shall be a staff member), the Principal and Chairperson are responsible 
for ensuring the EEO procedures are adhered to and may be contacted about EEO matters 
in the school. 

2.​ A confidential (to the Principal) employee database will be built up to identify the 
employment pattern of men and women, Maori, other ethnic groups and persons with 
disabilities.  

3.​ All personnel policies and practices are developed and reviewed to ensure they adhere to 
EEO principles.  Areas to be considered are: 

○​ recruitment and selection 
○​ promotion and professional learning 
○​ conditions of service 

4.​ Board of Trustee members and Management Team members will be made aware of EEO 
procedures prior to interview procedures for employment. 

  

​

  

Has this policy or programme been made available to staff? 

D3 Personnel Policy REVIEWED Jun22 

The policies and procedures are available to all staff on our Google Internal Sites system 

https://sites.google.com/windsornorth.school.nz/wns-policies-and-procedures/home/oper
ational-policies/personnel-policy/personnel 

​   

Does your EEO programme/policy include training to raise awareness of issues which may 
impact EEO? 

Yes - this is an area of review and being woven in with the Mitey and Wellbeing 
development work we are doing as a staff 

​   

Has your EEO programme/policy appointed someone to coordinate compliance with its 
requirements? 

Our leadership team supports the development of work alongside the Principal. Our 
Deputy Principal is our EEO officer. 

​   

Does your EEO programme/policy provide for regular reporting on compliance with the 
policy and/or achievements under the policy? 

Yes we report aspects of the policy within confidential minutes within  

​   

Does your EEO programme/policy set priorities and objectives? 

Under our Strategic Goal of ‘Leaderful Learning’ a key priority has been around the 
development of wellbeing. This will be a focus for our school over the next 2 years in 
forming and embedding the Mitey programme / Mana Model across our school and 
continued support for our staff. 

​   

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1IWTUKBVy-1uO2CWvskRKuAdM5hHMqqlgPCcp28uAEdI/edit?usp=sharing
https://sites.google.com/windsornorth.school.nz/wns-policies-and-procedures/home/operational-policies/personnel-policy/personnel
https://sites.google.com/windsornorth.school.nz/wns-policies-and-procedures/home/operational-policies/personnel-policy/personnel


 

 

WINDSOR NORTH SCHOOL  
APPOINTMENTS POLICY 

Reviewed: March 2024 Next review: Triennially 
 
 
OUTCOME STATEMENT  
The best applicants are appointed through a fair, rigorous appointments process. 
 
SCOPING  
To assist in the appointment of quality staff to any vacancy that may arise, appointment committees with 
expertise relevant to the vacancy will be selected to carry out the appropriate appointment procedures. In 
accordance with the regulatory requirements for safety checking under the Children’s Act 2014, we 
demonstrate our commitment to the safety of children by adopting appropriate safety checking practices 
when employing school staff, whether core workers, volunteers or other. This policy is used in conjunction 
with Windsor North School procedures on safety checking, Police vetting and screening. 
 
DELEGATIONS 
The board delegates authority to determine the composition of the various appointment committees 
according to the schedule outlined below. Appointment of the principal is the responsibility of the board, 
which will determine the process and seek NZSTA advice. 
 
EXPECTATIONS AND LIMITATIONS 
The principal must ensure that: 

●​ appointment of deputy principals, head of departments/senior teachers will involve an 
appointment committee consisting of the principal, the board chair and at the discretion of 
the principal another teaching staff member, and at the discretion of the board, a further 
trustee 

●​ unless determined otherwise by the board, appointment of all other teachers, part-time 
teachers, long-term relieving teachers and non-teaching staff will be the responsibility of 
the principal in consultation with the board 

●​ procedures are in place and fully implemented that meet all legislative requirements 
regarding safety checking, Police vetting and screening of all staff. 

●​ In the case of Community of Learning I Kāhui Ako membership: 
●​ Staff seeking the Communities of Learning I Kāhui Ako leadership role or the teacher 

across schools role must seek and receive consent from their employing board before 
applying for the role. 

 
PROCEDURES/SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 
Police vetting procedure 
Safety checklist 
Appointment Templates – application form, shortlisting matrix, interview matrix, reference 
checking matrix etc. 
 
MONITORING  
As per term checklist in Principal report 
 
LEGISLATIVE COMPLIANCE 
Collective employment agreements 
Employment Relations Act 2000 

https://www.nzsta.org.nz/advice-and-support/employment/recruitment-and-induction/safety-checks/
https://www.nzsta.org.nz/advice-and-support/employment/recruitment-and-induction/forms-and-templates-for-appointmenting-employees/


Children’s Act 2014 
 
  

This Policy is for review over 2024. 

 

Procedures of appointment during 2024 

Internal appointments - based on needs of the school  

All staff completed a Staff Preference form for 2024 based on the staffing ratio set 

 

Appointments granted in Committee at the October and November Meeting 

Moved 2 job share situations 

Moved reduction of hours for 2 staff 

CRT allocation and consultation made with staff 

Unit allocation 

Board Funded Leadership release 

New MOE funding Reading Recovery, 

 

Focus was to maintain current staff within the organisation and allocation or permanent part time 
roles to the staffing above. 

 



 

Windsor North School 
Kiwisport Report 2024 

 
Kiwisport is a Government funded initiative to support students’ participation in organised 
sport. During 2024, the school received $4,869.56 (excluding GST) which was used to assist 
the funding of:  
 
 

1.​ Sports tournament costs: 
●​ Jump Jam 
●​ Athletics 
●​ Orienteering 
●​ Golf 

 
2.​ Subsidies for students: 

●​ Camp 
●​ Travel to Cross Country 

 
3.​ Sports equipment: 

●​ Hurdles 
●​ Balls 
●​ Netball Bibs 
●​ Badges 
●​ Whistles 
●​ Basketball Backboards 
 

4.​ Other 
●​ Swimming 
●​ Colour Run Powder 
●​ Thank you gifts for parent coaches and managers 

 
 
​  
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